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City Council Workshop
February 22, 2024, 5:00 p.m.

Meetings are available to watch on our YouTube Channel:
Search for “The City of Bruceville-Eddy” and click the subscribe button.

Please mute your phones and computers to avoid any interference during the meeting

Call to Order - Mayor Owens
a) Roll Call

Citizen Presentations

The City Council welcomes public comments at this point on items not specifically listed on the agenda. Speakers
must sign up before the meeting begins. Speakers are limited to five (5) minutes each. The Council cannot respond
to matters not listed on the agenda until a future meeting.

Annual Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report — Adam Haberer
Council to discuss and consider the City’s fiscal year 2022-2023 financial statements with independent auditor’s
report thereon and required supplementary information.

WBW Development — Community Presentation and Discussion on Eagle Prairie Subdivision
Council and community to receive a presentation from WBW Development on their proposed Eagle Prairie

housing development; property located at 901 Eagle Drive Eddy, Texas 76524, containing a total of 122.46 acres.

Adjournment
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Regular City Council Meeting
February 22, 2024, 6:00 p.m.

Meetings are available to watch on our YouTube Channel:
Search for “The City of Bruceville-Eddy” and click the subscribe button.

Please mute your phones and computers to avoid any interference during the meeting

Call to Order - Mayor Owens
a) Greetings
b) Invocation
c) Pledge of Allegiance
d) Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.
e) Roll Call

Community Announcements

Citizen Presentations

The City Council welcomes public comments at this point on items not specifically listed on the agenda. Speakers
must sign up before the meeting begins. Speakers are limited to five (5) minutes each. The Council cannot respond
to matters not listed on the agenda until a future meeting.

Citizen Request for Consideration — Carmen Baker

Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on a request by Mrs. Carmen Baker of 102 Brown Drive to
rezone property in between Old Moody Road and Brown Drive from Single Family Dwelling District to General
Business.

Open Public Hearing — Zoning Change from Agricultural District to Manufactured Home District:

613 4 Street Eddy, Texas 76524

Council to hear public comments pertaining to an owner/agent initiated zoning change on property located at 613
4™ Street Eddy, Texas 76524, containing a total of 14.397 acres; and further described as being located within the
City limits of Bruceville-Eddy; and in-between 4" Street and Franklin Road from its current designation of
Agricultural District to Manufactured Home District.

The public hearing is open to any interested persons with opinions, objections, and/or comments related to this
matter. Comments related to this matter may only be expressed via mail, e-mail or, by appearing in person.
Another person or attorney may also represent you.

Close Public Hearing — Zoning Change from Agricultural District to Manufactured Home District:
613 4™ Street Eddy, Texas 76524



BRUCEVILLE
Eddy

Fhe City of Busceviltle-Eddy Rising into the Futuwne

7.

10.

11.
12.
13.

14.

144 Wilcox Drive www.bruceville-eddy.us Phone: (254) 859-5964
Eddy, Texas 76524 Fax: (254) 859-5779

Zoning Change from Agricultural District to Manufactured Home District:

613 4 Street Eddy, Texas 76524

At the request of property owners’ agent, Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on ordinance 2-22-
2024-1; changing the zoning classification on property located at 613 4 Street Eddy, Texas 76524, containing a
total of 14.397 acres; and further described as being located within the City limits of Bruceville-Eddy; and in-
between 4th Street and Franklin Road from its current designation of Agricultural District to Manufactured Home
District; amending the official Zoning Map of the City of Bruceville-Eddy, McLennan County, Texas to rightly
reflect said changes.

Police Chief’s Report — Chief Michael Dorsey

Oath of Office — Chief Michael Dorsey
Chief Michael Dorsey will formally administer the Oath of Office to our newest Patrol Officer, TeRico Cade

New Water Well Site Recommendations and Site Selection
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on a recommendation for a new municipal water well site
from the commissioned MRB Group feasibility study.

Public Works Director’s Report — Gene Sprouse
Engineering Reports
City Administrator’s Report — Kent Manton

Consent Agenda
All items listed on the consent agenda will be considered by the City Council and will be enacted on by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or a member of the public so requests.

A. Approval of Minutes

Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to approve the minutes from the January 11, 2024, February
1, 2024, and February 13, 2024 Special Called City Council Meetings as well as the January 25, 2024 Regular City
Council Meeting.

B. Finances — January 2024
i) Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on the January 2024 financial reports for the general,
water, and sewer fund accounts.

ii) Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on the January 2024 accounts payable for the general,
water, and sewer fund accounts.

C. Grazing Lease Agreement - Dorothy Coker

Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to authorize the Mayor to enter into a grazing lease
agreement with Mrs. Dorothy Coker, of 843 W 3™ Street for land owned by the City of Bruceville-Eddy for the
purpose of cattle grazing.
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D. Grazing Lease Agreement — Troy Parker

Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to authorize the Mayor to enter into a grazing lease
agreement with Mr. Troy Parker, of 1194 County Spring Road for land owned by the City of Bruceville-Eddy for
the purpose of cattle grazing.

E. Annual Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to approve the City’s fiscal year 2022-2023 financial
statements with independent auditor’s report thereon and required supplementary information.

F. Interlocal Cooperation Contract — Failure to Appear Program

Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to enter into a revised Interlocal Cooperation Contract (ICC)
with the Texas Department of Public Safety for the purpose of continuing our participation in the failure to appear
program.

G. SKE Engineering — Friendly Oaks Groundwater Well

Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to authorize the City Administrator to exceed the previously
established $10,000 NTE amount at the 10/26/2023 Council meeting for electrical engineering services with SKE
Engineering, LLC. for the diagnosis of the faulty water well at Friendly Oaks; authorization of an additional
$5,000 to pay for services rendered to date and to provide a cushion for the planned final inspection of recently
performed electrical upgrades at the site prior to the reenergizing the well.

15. Executive Session
A. The City Council Shall Meet in Executive Session to Discuss the Following:

Termination Appeal to Mayor and City Council

Texas Government Code Section 551.074 — Personnel Matters — Discussion regarding the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a
complaint or charge against an officer or employee: Community Development Specialist. Tex. Gov't Code Ann. §
551.074.

Consultation with Attorney regarding Review of Termination Appeal

Texas Government Code Section 551.071 (Consultation with City Attorney) and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct. Confer with City Attorney to receive legal advice regarding a review of
termination appeal.

B. Reconvene into Open Session

C. Possible Action on Issues Discussed in Executive Session
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16. Water Company of America Contract
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on a contract with Water Company of America for the
provision of services that will include data analysis and field investigation of the City of Bruceville-Eddy’s water
system and billing software to search for missed billing opportunities with the end goal of increasing revenue and
reducing water loss.

17. Falls County Water Main Improvements (Phase 1) — Project Update
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to receive an update from the City Administrator on the
project along with a request to proceed with this project without the previously sought after easements from
adjacent property owners.

18. National Day of Prayer
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action on the hosting of a second annual National Day of Prayer at
City Hall on May 2, 2024.

19. Deer Creek Municipal Utility District: Director Nomination
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action to nominate an appointment to the Board of Directors of the
Deer Creek Municipal Utility District.

20. Authorization to Join Class Action Lawsuits: 3M & DuPont
Council to discuss, consider, and possibly take action authorize the City Administrator to submit the City of
Bruceville-Eddy Water System as a party to two separate class action lawsuits associated with the alleged
contamination of public water sources across the United States polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS); further to
authorize the City Administrator to order the necessary discounted sampling kits for the analysis of our water
sources as required by the settlement to determine damages to be awarded in an amount NTE $2,500.

21. Adjournment

For the safety of citizens, council members, and staff, upon adjourning of the city council meeting, citizens/visitors are asked to exit the building
through the front entrance to City Hall immediately. Any bags, backpacks, purses, etc., that are being brought into the council meeting room are
subject to security screening. Anyone (citizens, visitors) attending a city council meeting will be subjected to a metal detector screening before
entering the council meeting room.

All items on the agenda are for discussion and/or action. The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the
course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076
(Deliberations about Security Devices,) and 551.086 (Economic Development). The city is committed to compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA). Reasonable accommodations and equal access to communications will be provided to those who provide notice to the City
Administrator at least 48 hours in advance. Please contact the City Administrator at (254) 859-5700 or fax at (254) 859-5779 for information or
assistance.
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I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the governing body of the above named City of Bruceville-Eddy is
a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said Notice on the official notice case, at City Hall in the City of
Bruceville-Eddy, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the 16th day of
February 2024 at 5:30 pm, and remained so posted, continuously, for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said Meeting.

//V/'/‘Z,ﬂlm 2.//6/2_0’1_‘1

Kent Manton, City Administrator Date:
City of Brucevillg-Eddy, Texas
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Bruceville-Eddy, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of the City of Bruceville-Eddy, Texas (“the City”), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the City as of
September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

-1-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 - 11 and the schedule of funding progress — TMRS pension plan, schedule of
changes in net pension liability (asset) and related ratios, schedule of pension contributions, schedule of changes
in total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of OPEB contributions and the budgetary comparison
information on pages 57 - 66 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying individual fund financial statements on pages
69 - 71, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the individual fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 2023, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pt a7 T

Temple, Texas
December 18, 2023



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this section of the Annual Financial Report, we, the managers of the City of Bruceville-Eddy, Texas (“the
City”), discuss and analyze the City’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. Please
read it in conjunction with the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 1 through 4, and the City’s Basic Financial
Statements, which begin on page 14.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
o The City’s net position increased by $ 482,742 as a result of this year’s operations.
e The General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $ 3,021,108.

e During the year, the City had governmental expenses that were $ 4,914 more than the $ 1,124,772
generated in tax and other revenues for governmental programs.

e The total cost of all the City’s programs was $ 2,959,890. Of this amount, $ 2,514,213 was directly
attributed to Public Safety (Police Department) and Water Services. The remainder of the cost was mainly
for general government and street repair.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements include
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 14 through 17). These provide
information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s property and
debt obligations and other financial matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar
to the financial reports of a business enterprise.

Fund financial statements (starting on page 18) report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds. For governmental activities,
these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what resources remain for future
spending. They reflect the flow of current financial resources and supply the basis for tax levies and the
appropriations budget. Proprietary statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail.

The notes to financial statements (starting on page 31) provide narrative explanations or additional data needed
for full disclosure in the government-wide statements and the fund financial statements.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the City’s overall financial condition and operations begins on page 14. Its primary purpose is to
show whether the City is better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. The Statement of Net Position

includes all the City’s assets and liabilities at the end of the year while the Statement of Activities includes all the
revenues and expenses generated by the City’s operations during the year.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal years (e.g. uncollected taxes). Both the statement of net position and the statement of activities are
prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting.

These two statements report the City’s net position and the changes in them. The City’s net position (the
difference between assets and liabilities) provide one measure of the City’s financial health, or financial position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall health of the City, however, you should consider
nonfinancial factors as well, such as changes in the property tax base and the condition of the City’s facilities.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two kinds of activities.

Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the public safety,
streets, and general government. Property taxes, fines and sales taxes finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. The City’s water and sewer system activities are reported here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City as a
whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. The City’s two kinds of
funds - governmental and proprietary - utilize different accounting approaches.

Governmental fund — The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method identified as the modified accrual basis
of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. By comparing information presented for the governmental fund with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. The relationships or
differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental fund statements are detailed in a reconciliation following the fund financial
statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Proprietary fund - The City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or
to other units within the City. These services are generally reported in the proprietary fund. The
proprietary fund is reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are identical to the business-type
activities that are reported in the government-wide statements, but provide more detail and additional
information such as cash flows for the proprietary fund.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The City’s combined net position was $ 9,929,028 as of September 30, 2023. Analyzing the net position and net

expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, the business-type activities net position was
$ 5,592,855 and the governmental activities net position was $ 4,336,173.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The following condensed financial statements focus on the Net Position (Table I) and Change in Net Position
(Table II) of general revenues and significant expenses of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.

Table I
NET POSITION
Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Current and other assets $3,511,977 $3,576,715 $2,941,862 $2,819,865 $6,453,839 $6,396,580
Noncurrent and capital
assets 1,275,156 1,395,346 4,431,854 4,502,240 5,707,010 5,897,586
Total assets 4,787,133 4,972,061 7,373,716 7,322,105 12,160,849 12,294,166
Deferred outflows 153,943 23,138 60,756 15,409 214,699 38,547
Total assets and
deferred outflows 4,941,076 4,995,199 7,434,472 7,337,514 12,375,548 12,332,713
Other liabilities 46,658 96,604 147,844 172,939 194,502 269,543
Long-term liabilities 39,404 47,116 1,659,514 2,007,195 1,698,918 2,054,311
Total liabilities 86,062 143,720 1,807,358 2,180,134 1,893,420 2,323,854
Deferred inflows 518,841 510,392 34,259 52,182 553,100 562,574
Total liabilities and
deferred inflows 604,903 654,112 1,841,617 2,232,316 2,446,520 2,886,428
Net Position:
Net investment in capital
assets 1,234,118 1,246,379 2,780,332 2,432,946 4,014,450 3,679,325
Restricted 221,886 361,917 393,609 395,459 615,495 757,376
Unrestricted 2,880,169 2,732,791 2,418,914 2,276,793 5,299,083 5,009,584
Total Net Position $4,336,173 $4,341,087 $5,592,855 $5,105,198 $9,929,028 $9,446,285
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Table 11
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for services $ 324989 §$ 303,181 $2,177,797 $1,974,316 $2,502,786 $2,277,497
General Revenues:
Property tax 414,656 406,144 - - 414,656 406,144
Sales tax 129,031 112,512 - - 129,031 112,512
Other taxes 58,088 56,196 - - 58,088 56,196
Investment earnings 109,038 16,796 76,288 13,743 185,326 30,539
Miscellaneous 88,970 371,748 63,775 9,779 152,745 381,527
Total Revenue 1,124,772 1,266,577 2,317,860 1,997,838 3,442,632 3,264,415
Expenses:
General government 385,015 272,910 - - 385,015 272,910
Public safety 684,009 492,445 - - 684,009 492,445
Streets 60,662 25,790 - - 60,662 25,790
Water and sewer - - 1,830,203 1,550,328 1,830,203 1,550,328
Total Expenses 1,129,686 791,145 1,830,203 1,550,328 2,959,889 2,341,473
Change in net position (4,914) 475,432 487,657 447,510 482,743 922,942
Net position - beginning 4,341,087 3,865,655 5,105,198 4,657,688 9,446,285 8,523,343
Net position - ending $4,336,173 $4,341,087 $5,592,855 $5,105,198 $9,929,028 $9,446,285




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

A large portion of the City’s net position (40%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position (6%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The balance of unrestricted net position, $ 5,299,083, may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in both categories of net position for the
government as a whole.

For the year ended September 30, 2023, revenues from governmental activities totaled $ 1,124,772. Charges for
public safety services accounted for 29% of these revenues and property taxes accounted for 37% of the total.

For the year ended September 30, 2023, expenses for governmental activities totaled $ 1,129,686. The City’s
three largest funded programs are for general government, public safety and streets.

Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $ 2,317,860 for the year ended September 30, 2023.
Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were $ 1,830,204. The City’s largest business-type activities
expense was the purchase of water.

THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed the year, its governmental fund (as presented in the balance sheet on page 18) reported a
fund balance of $ 3,021,108, which is $ 15,143 lower than last year's total of $ 3,036,251.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2023, the City had $ 5,649,776 (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in a broad range
of capital assets, including facilities, equipment and land. This amount represents a net increase of $ 361 due to

current year purchases and contributions being more than depreciation and current year disposals. This year’s
major additions included:

Buildings and improvements $ 2,000
Water facilities 168,662
Machinery and equipment 178,898
Construction in progress 4,255

$ 353,815
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Debt

At year-end, the City had $ 1,635,326 in bonds and notes outstanding versus $ 1,970,090 last year. This decrease
is due to the principal payments applied to the outstanding debt during fiscal year 2023 and no new debt obtained.

More detailed information about the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in the Notes to Financial Statements
on pages 43 through 45.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered population growth and available resources from water,
public safety and tax revenues when setting the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 budget and tax rate.

The City adopted a $ 4,304,181 combined budget for fiscal year ending September 30, 2024. It will be funded
through property taxes, water and utility charges, and other local revenues.

If the City does not incur any unforeseen expenditures or reductions in revenue, current revenues should cover
current expenses with no change estimated fund balance in the General Fund and no change in the Water Fund net
position.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City’s business office at City
of Bruceville-Eddy, 144 Wilcox Drive, Bruceville-Eddy, Texas 76524.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2023
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,936 $ 2,381,283 $ 2,436,219
Investments 2,743,580 - 2,743,580
Receivables, net 12,175 210,011 222,186
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 658,245 393,609 1,051,854
Internal balances 43,041 (43,041) -
Net pension asset 41,038 16,196 57,234
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and improvements 649,610 559,183 1,208,793
Construction in progress - 738,635 738,635
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 187,823 48,037 235,860
Water facilities - 2,585,059 2,585,059
Machinery and equipment 232,552 484,744 717,296
Infrastructure 164,133 - 164,133
Total capital assets 1,234,118 4,415,658 5,649,776
Total Assets 4,787,133 7,373,716 12,160,849
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 146,145 57,678 203,823
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 7,798 3,078 10,876
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,941,076 7,434,472 12,375,548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
State criminal costs and fees payable
Other accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within on year:
Bonds and notes payable
Due in more than one year:
Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions

Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Unavailable revenues

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Court technology and building security

Public safety
Child safety

Debt service
Capital projects
Customer deposits
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Governmental

Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
12,208 97,580 109,788
26,435 - 26,435

8,015 9,417 17,432

- 40,847 40,847

- 347,668 347,668

- 1,287,658 1,287,658

10,722 12,868 23,590
28,682 11,320 40,002
86,062 1,807,358 1,893,420
70,434 27,798 98,232
16,371 6,461 22,832
432,036 - 432,036
604,903 1,841,617 2,446,520
1,234,118 2,780,332 4,014,450
9,907 - 9,907
205,090 - 205,090
6,889 - 6,889

- 286,647 286,647

- 62,845 62,845

- 44,117 44,117
2,880,169 2,418,914 5,299,083
$ 4,336,173 $ 5,592,855 $ 9,929,028
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Functions/Programs

Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water utility
Sewer
Total business-type activities

Total Primary Government

Program Revenues

Operating

Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions
§ 385,015 $ 39,578 $ -
684,009 285,411 -
60,662 - -
1,129,686 324,989 -
1,829,941 2,177,797 -
262 - -
1,830,203 2,177,797 -

$ 2,959,889 $ 2,502,786 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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General Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales and miscellaneous taxes
Franchise taxes
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net position
Net Position - beginning of year

Net Position - end of year



Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ (345,437) $ - $ (345,437
(398,598) - (398,598)
(60,662) - (60,662)
(804,697) - (804,697)
- 347,856 347,856
- (262) (262)
N 347,594 347,594
(804,697) 347,594 (457,103)
414,656 - 414,656
129,031 - 129,031
58,088 - 58,088
109,038 76,288 185,326
88,970 63,775 152,745
799,783 140,063 939,846
(4,914) 487,657 482,743
4,341,087 5,105,198 9,446,285
$ 4,336,173 $ 5,592,855 $ 9,929,028
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
September 30, 2023

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable, net

Due from other funds

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
State criminal costs and fees payable
Other accrued liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred CLFR funds revenue
Unavailable revenues - property taxes
Unavailable revenues - lease income

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Court technology and building security
Public safety
Child safety
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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General
Fund

$ 54,936
2,743,580
12,175
43,041
658,245

S 3511977

$ 12,208
26,435
8,015

46,658

421,324
12,175
10,712

444,211

9,907
205,090
6,889

2,799,222
3,021,108

8 3511977



CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2023

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Fund (Page 18)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Land $§ 649,610
Buildings 303,592
Equipment 762,004
Infrastructure 363,885
Accumulated depreciation (844.973)
Total capital assets $ 1,234,118

Net pension asset is not available to pay obligations in the current period and therefore is
not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows related to pension activity are not required to be reported in the funds
but are required to be reported at the government-wide level.

Deferred outflows related to OPEB activity are not required to be reported in the funds but
are required to be reported at the government-wide level.

Accrued vacation and comp time payable is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore is not reported in the funds.

Net OPEB liability is not due and payable in the current period and therefore is not
reported in the funds.

Deferred inflows related to pension activity are not required to be reported in the funds but
are required to be reported at the government-wide level.

Deferred inflows related to OPEB activity are not required to be reported in the funds but
are required to be reported at the government-wide level.

Delinquent taxes are recognized as revenue in the period for which levied in the
Government-Wide financial statements, but are reported as deferred inflows of resources
in the fund financial statements.

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Page 15)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$ 3,021,108

1,234,118

41,038

146,145

7,798

(10,722)

(28,682)

(70,434)

(16,371)

12,175

$ 4336173



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

Revenues

Ad valorem tax

Sales tax

Franchise tax

Fines and forfeitures

Licenses and permits

Interest income

Lease and miscellaneous income

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Public safety
Streets

Total Expenditures

CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Deficit of revenues over expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund Balance- beginning of year

Fund Balance- end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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General
Fund

§ 414,306
129,031
58,088
285,411
39,578
109,038
89,454

1,124,906

384,410
713,671
41,968

1,140,049
(15,143)
(15,143)

3,036,251
_S 3,001,108



CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Fund (Page 20)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (pages 16-17)
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlay expense in the current period.

Capital outlay $ 81,083
Depreciation expense (92,860)
§ (11,777)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital asses (i.e. sales,
disposals and donations) is to decrease net position

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.

Property taxes not collected $ 12,175
Less prior year (11,824)
$ 351

The net pension liability and related deferred outflows/inflows per GASB 68 is accrued at
the government-wide level but not at the fund level. This is the current year change
related to the net pension liability and related deferred outflows/inflows, reported as
expense in the statement of activities.

The total OPEB liability and related deferred outflows/inflows per GASB 75 is accrued at
the government-wide level but not at the fund level. This is the current year change
related to the total OPEB liability and related deferred outflows/inflows, reported as
expense in the statement of activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Page 17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(11,777)

(485)

351

27,344
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$ (4.914)



CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETERY FUNDS
September 30, 2023
Business-Type
Activities
Water Fund Sewer Fund Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,381,283 $ - 2,381,283
Accounts receivable, net 210,011 - 210,011
Total current assets 2,591,294 - 2,591,294
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 393,609 - 393,609
Net pension asset 16,196 - 16,196
Due from other funds 814,071 - 814,071
Capital assets, net 3,594,101 821,557 4,415,658
Total noncurrent assets 4,817,977 821,557 5,639,534
Total assets 7,409,271 821,557 8,230,828
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 57,678 - 57,678
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 3,078 - 3,078
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,470,027 821,557 8,291,584
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 97,580 - 97,580
Accrued liabilities 9,417 - 9,417
Customer deposits 40,847 - 40,847
Due to other funds - 857,112 857,112
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds and notes payable - current portion 347,668 - 347,668
Total current liabilities 495,512 857,112 1,352,624
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 12,868 - 12,868
Total OPEB liability 11,320 - 11,320
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds and notes payable 1,287,658 - 1,287,658
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,311,846 - 1,311,846
Total Liabilities 1,807,358 857,112 2,664,470

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Customer deposits
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total Net Position

Business-Type

Activities

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total
27,798 - 27,798
6,461 - 6,461
1,841,617 857,112 2,698,729
1,958,775 821,557 2,780,332
286,647 - 286,647
62,845 - 62,345
44,117 - 44,117
3,276,026 (857,112) 2,418914
$ 5,628,410 $ (35,555) $ 5,592,855
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Business-Type

Activities
Water Fund Sewer Fund Total
Operating Revenues
Water $ 1,903,933 $ - $ 1,903,933
Garbage 153,381 - 153,381
Water tap fees 71,500 - 71,500
Other operating revenues 48,983 - 48,983
Total Operating Revenues 2,177,797 - 2,177,797
Operating Expenses
Water purchases 633,551 - 633,551
Water system utilities 137,322 - 137,322
Water system supplies 49,939 - 49,939
Repairs and maintenance 34,835 - 34,835
Other water system expenses 88,626 - 88,626
Personnel and support 231,795 - 231,795
Professional fees 18,431 262 18,693
Administrative expenses 115,187 - 115,187
Garbage collection fees 147,225 - 147,225
Depreciation and amortization 259,861 - 259,861
Total Operating Expenses 1,716,772 262 1,717,034
Operating Income (Loss) 461,025 (262) 460,763
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 76,288 - 76,288
Interest expense (83,855) - (83,855)
Donations emergency services income 1,668 - 1,668
Donations emergency services expense (1,506) - (1,5006)
Capital outlay (27,808) - (27,808)
Miscellaneous income 62,107 - 62,107
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 26,894 - 26,894
Change in Net Position 487,919 (262) 487,657
Net Position - beginning of year 5,140,491 (35,293) 5,105,198
Net Position - end of year $ 5,628,410 $ (35,555) $ 5592855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Contribution income
Contribution expense
Miscellaneous income

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Payments on long-term bonds
Interest paid

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
Increase in restricted cash

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business-Type
Activities
Water and

Sewer Funds

$ 2,128,511
(1,219,550)
(224,974)

683,987

1,668
(1,506)
34,298

34,460

(272,482)
(334,764)
(83,855)

(691,101)

76,288
1,850

78,138

105,484

2,275,799

§ 2,381,283




Business-Type
Activities
Water and

Sewer Funds

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income $ 460,763
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 259,861
Changes in assets, deferred outlflows or resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows or resources:

Change in accounts receivable (45,298)
Change in net pension asset 83,008
Change in due from other funds 22,417
Change in deferred outflows (45,347)
Change in accounts payable 64,304
Change in accrued liabilities (85,411)
Change in due to/from other funds 4,518
Change in customer deposits (3,988)
Change in net OPEB liability (12,917)
Change in deferred inflows (17,923)
Total Adjustments 223,224
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 683,987
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Bruceville-Eddy, Texas (the City) was incorporated in 1974 for the purpose of providing public
safety, water and sanitation services, planning and general administrative services. The City's present
population is approximately 1,420, and it serves approximately 1,900 metered customers.

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
financial statements of the City.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. This
statement, known as the “Reporting Model” statement, affects the way the City prepares and presents
financial information. State and local governments traditionally have used a financial reporting model
substantially different from the one used to prepare private-sector financial reports.

GASB Statement No. 34 established new requirements and a new reporting model for the annual financial
reports of state and local governments. The Statement was developed to make annual reports easier to
understand and more useful to the people who use governmental financial information to make decisions and
includes:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - GASB Statement No. 34 requires that financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities in
the form of a “management’s discussion and analysis” (MD&A). This analysis is similar to the analysis the
private sector provides in their annual reports.

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The reporting model includes financial statements prepared using
full accrual accounting for all of the government’s activities. Government-wide financial statements do not
provide information by fund or account group, but distinguish between the City’s governmental activities and
business-type activities on the statement of net position and statement of activities. Significantly, the City’s
statement of net position includes both noncurrent assets and noncurrent liabilities of the City, which were
previously recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the General Long-term Obligations
Account Group (such as building and infrastructure, including bridges and roads, and general obligation
debt). Accrual accounting also reports all of the revenues and cost of providing services each year, not just
those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter.

In addition, the government-wide statement of activities reflects depreciation expenses on the City’s capital
assets, including infrastructure. In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City has
prepared governmental fund financial statements, which continue to use the modified accrual basis of
accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. Accordingly, the accounting and financial
reporting for the City’s General Fund, the City’s major governmental fund, is similar to that previously
presented in the City’s financial statements, although the format of financial statements has been modified by
GASB Statement No. 34.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Statement of Net Position - The Statement of Net Position is designed to display the financial position of the
primary government (government and business-type activities). Governments report all capital assets,
including infrastructure, in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and report depreciation expense -
the cost of “using up” capital assets - in the Statement of Activities. The net position of the government will
be broken down into three categories - 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3)
unrestricted.

Statement of Activities - The government-wide statement of activities reports expenses and revenues in a
format that focuses on the cost of each of the government’s functions. The expense of individual functions is
compared to the revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through user charges or
intergovernmental grants).

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements.
They report information on all of the City’s non-fiduciary activities with most of the interfund activities
removed. Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by taxes, grants and other
intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities include programs supported primarily by water
revenues.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates how other people or entities that participate in programs the City
operates have shared in the payment of the direct costs. The “charges for services” column includes payments
made by parties that purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or
segment of the City. Examples include water payments, police fines, etc. If revenue is not program revenue,
it is general revenue used to support all of the City’s functions. Taxes are always general revenues.

Interfund activities between governmental funds appear as due to/due from on the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet. All interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-
wide statements.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities and
fund balances are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present net increases
and decreases in current assets (i.e., revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and other
financing uses).
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become
both measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund
liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest and principal on long-term debt, which is
recognized when due. The expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments
are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources. The City considers all revenues available if they are collectible within 60 days after period end.

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received
from the state are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded
as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available.

D. FUND ACCOUNTING
The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund - the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund and Sewer Fund - used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business or where the board has decided that the determination of revenues earned, cost
incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A summary reconciliation of the difference between total fund balances as reflected on the governmental
funds balance sheet and total net position for governmental activities as shown on the government-wide
statement of net position is presented in an accompanying schedule to the governmental funds balance sheet.
The asset and liability elements which comprise the reconciliation difference stem from governmental funds
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting while
the government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. A summary reconciliation of the difference between net changes in fund balances as
reflected on the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances and
change in net position for governmental activities as shown on the government-wide statement of activities is
presented in an accompanying schedule to the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances. The revenue and expense elements which comprise the reconciliation difference
stem from governmental funds using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting while the government-wide financial statements use the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report restrictions of fund balance for amounts that are
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
GASB No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010, requires governmental fund balances to be reported in
one of five classifications, replacing the previous classifications of reserved, unreserved, and designated.
These five classifications are non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Non-spendable fund balances are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. Restricted fund balances have constraints imposed either 1) by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation or 2) by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. Committed fund balances represent funds set aside formally by the City Council for specific
purposes or by contract. Assigned fund balances are earmarked for specific purposes by the City Council, but
are neither restricted nor committed. These balances represent tentative management plans that are subject to
change. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund for which the previous
classifications do not apply. When different classifications of funds are available for expenditure, the City
considers the most restrictive classification amount to have been spent first.

The following is a list of fund balance restrictions used by the City and a description of each:

Fund Balance Restrictions:

Debt Service- Funds restricted for the retirement of general long-term debt.

Court Technology and Building Security- Funds restricted, from specific court fees, for the purchase of
goods and services that will benefit the court.

Public Safety- Fund restricted, from criminal asset forfeiture programs, to be used only by and for the benefit
of the police department.

Child Safety- Funds restricted, from specific court fees, to be used to enhance child safety.
Capital Projects- Funds restricted for use in current and future construction projects.

Customer Deposits- Funds restricted to disbursements for the application to customer account balances or
refunds to customer.

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
1. Deposits and Investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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2. Receivables

Accounts and property tax receivables are shown net of any allowance for uncollectible accounts. Property
taxes receivable for the governmental fund types, which have been remitted within sixty days subsequent to
year-end, are considered measurable and available and recognized as revenues. All other property taxes are
offset by deferred resources and, accordingly, have not been recorded as revenue.

3. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are liquid assets that have third party (statutory, bond covenant or granting agency)
limitations on their use. Certain resources set aside for the repayment of revenue bonds are classified as
restricted assets on the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position, because they are maintained in
separate bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Customer deposits held by the
City before any services were supplied are restricted to the service for which the deposits were collected. A
percentage of fines collected by the City are restricted and their use limited by state statute.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an
initial individual cost of more than $ 2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Category Life

Buildings and improvements 10-30 years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Water facilities 30 years
Infrastructure 20 years

5. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are expensed in the period incurred.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

6. Net Position

Net Position in government-wide and proprietary financial statements are classified as net investment in
capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents constraints on resources that are
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
imposed by law through state statue.

7. Fund Balance

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on
the purposes for which resources can be used:

Non-spendable Fund Balance - Amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are required
to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its
highest level of decision-making authority to be reported as committed; amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the
authority.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Amounts that do not meet the criteria above and are available for any purpose;
positive amounts are reported in the General Fund.

City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance,
the highest level of action. This is typically done through adoption of the budget. A fund balance
commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a commitment of the fund. Assigned fund balance
is established by City Council by passage of a resolution either through adoption or amendment of the budget
as intended for specific purposes.

For the classification of Governmental Fund balances, the City considers expenditures to be made from the
most restrictive first when more than one classification is available.
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8. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Specifically, the actuarial calculations used to determine the annual required contributions and related
liabilities of the City’s retirement plans and post-employment obligations are based on assumptions about the
possibility of events far into the future. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

9. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas
Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions
are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contribution are
legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

10. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of
Bruceville-Eddy’s Post Employment Health Insurance Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this
purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable, in accordance with the benefit terms.
There are no investments as this is a pay-as-you-go plan.

11. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. At this time, the City has two items that qualify for reporting in
this category related to the City’s pension and OPEB plans through TMRS.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. At this time, the City has five items that qualify for reporting in
this category. They are amounts related to deferred property tax, pension and OPEB plans through TMRS,
deferred lease income and deferred grant revenues.
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F. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The City has reviewed GASB pronouncements which became effective in the current years, and notes the
following statements are applicable to the City:

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on
the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The requirements
of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. This pronouncement did
not impact the preparation of these financial statements.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and Investments

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the
areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other
things, it requires the City to adopt, implement and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address
the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable
investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of
portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity
date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for
certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain
U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money
market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8)
investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, (10) and common trust funds. The Act also requires
the City to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as provided by
the Act. The City is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.

Additional Contractual Provisions governing deposits and investments are as follows:

The funds of the City must be deposited and invested under the terms of a contract, contents of which are set
out in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged securities for
safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank in an amount sufficient to protect City’s funds on a day-to-
day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of
the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments

1. Foreign Currency Risk — The City’s deposits and investments are not exposed to foreign currency risk.
Custodial Credit Risk — The City’s policy is to be collateralized. The City was fully collateralized during
the period.

3. Interest Rate Risk — The City has no debt securities that have interest rate risk.

4. Other Credit Risk Exposure — The City does not invest in debt securities.
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5. Concentration Risk — The City’s deposits and investments are exposed to concentration risk in that they
are all deposited with the same bank.

Deposits Credit Risk

The cash deposits and savings accounts held at financial institutions can be categorized according to three
levels of risk. These three levels of risk are as follows:

Category 1 - Deposits, which are insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or by its agent in
the City’s name.

Category 2 - Deposits, which are collateralized with securities, held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 - Deposits which are not collateralized or insured.

Based on these three levels of risk, all of the City’s cash deposits are classified as Category 1.

Deposits are stated at cost plus accrued interest and the carrying amounts are displayed on the balance sheet
as cash and cash equivalents. Following is a summary of the City’s deposits, by category:

1. Insured by FDIC $ 5,953,647
2. Collateralized by pledged securities 316,949
3. Uninsured and uncollateralized -
Total Bank Balance $ 6,270,596
Carrying Amount $ 6,231,653

B. RESTRICTED CASH

The City had restricted cash of $§ 393,609 in the Water Fund and $ 658,245 in the General Fund as of
September 30, 2023. The restrictions stem from the need to protect customer utility deposits, to set aside a
reserve for the payment of interest and principal on bonded indebtedness, and to set aside monies that are
restricted by revenue sources as to use.
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C. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at year-end for the government’s individual major funds in the aggregate, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General Water
Fund Fund
Tax receivables $ 40,146 $ -
Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts (27,971) -
Tax receivable, net 12,175 -
Accounts receivable - 212,273
Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts - (2,262)

Total Receivables $ 12,175 $ 210,011

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances. The individual interfund
receivables and payable balances at September 30, 2023, were:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 43,041 $ -
Water Fund 814,071 -
Sewer Fund - 857,112
Total All Funds $ 857,112 $ 857,112
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E. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2023 was as follows:

Beginning Reclassifications Ending
Balance Additions (Deletions) Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 649,610 § - 95 -3 649,610

Construction in progress - - - -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 649,610 - - 649,610
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 301,592 2,000 - 303,592

Machinery and equipment 715,003 79,083 (32,082) 762,004

Infrastructure 363,885 - - 363,885
Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,380,480 81,083 (32,082) 1,429,481
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (105,711) (10,058) - (115,769)

Machinery and equipment (496,442) (64,608) 31,598 (529,452)

Infrastructure (181,558) (18,194) - (199,752)
Total accumulated depreciation (783,711) (92,860) 31,598 (844,973)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 596,769 (11,777) (484) 584,508
Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Net $ 1246379 $ (11,777)  $ (484) § 1,234,118
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Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Water facilities
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Water facilities
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Reclassifications Ending
Balance Additions (Deletions) Balance
$ 559,183 $ -3 -3 559,183
734,380 4,255 - 738,635
1,293,563 4,255 - 1,297,818
185,113 - - 185,113
6,017,425 168,662 - 6,186,087
971,838 99,815 (48,776) 1,022,877
7,174,376 268,477 (48,776) 7,394,077
(135,298) (1,778) - (137,076)
(3,437,761) (163,267) - (3,601,028)
(491,844) (94,816) 48,527 (538,133)
(4,064,903) (259,861) 48,527 (4,276,237)
3,109,473 8,616 (249) 3,117,840
$ 4,403,036 $ 12,871 $ (249) $ 4,415,658

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type activities:
Water and sewer

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities
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F. LONG-TERM DEBT

The City’s long-term debt at September 30, 2023 is comprised of the following individual issues:

Proprietary Water Fund Revenue Refunding Bonds:

$ 371,000 Series 2011 Certificates of Obligation, maturing September 2025;
15 certificates with interest rates varying from 5.5% to 5.875%; annual
principal payments ranging from $ 33,000 to $ 35,000 are due per the bonds'
maturity dates schedule. Interest is due each March and September; secured by
the revenues of the City's water system.

Proprietary Water Fund Revenue Bonds

$ 731,000 Series 2011 Certificates of Obligation, maturing September 2025;
15 certificates with interest rates varying from 5.5% to 5.875%; annual
principal payments ranging from $ 66,000 to $ 70,000 are due per the bonds'
maturity dates schedule. Interest is due each March and September; secured by
the revenues of the City's water system.

$ 1,883,000 Series 2013 Certificates of Obligation, maturing September 2028;
interest rates varying from 3.25% to 4.25%; annual principal payments ranging
from $ 113,000 to $ 254,000 are due per the bonds' maturity dates schedule.
Interest is due each March and September; secured by the revenues of the
City's water system.

$ 395,000 Series 2015 Certificates of Obligation, maturing September 2030;
interest rate at 4.25%; annual principal payments ranging from $ 35,000 to $
41,000 are due per the bonds' maturity dates schedule. Interest is due each
March and September; secured by the revenues of the City's water system.

$ 489,200 water meter system loan with Government Capital Corporation;
maturing March 2025; payable in annual installments of $106,736; interest at
2.97%; secured by ad valorem tax revenues.

Total Proprietary Long-Term Debt
Less Current Portion

Total Long-Term Debt
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Debt service requirements to maturity for the above long-term debt are as follows:

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2011
Year Ending September 30,
2024
2025
Total

Water Revenue Bonds - Series 2011
Year Ending September 30,
2024
2025
Total

Water Revenue Bonds - Series 2013
Year Ending September 30,

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Total

Water Revenue Bonds - Series 2015
Year Ending September 30,
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029-2030
Total

Water Fund Note Payable - Water Meter System
Year Ending September 30,
2024
2025
Total

Principal Interest Total

$ 33,000 $ 4,006 37,006
35,000 2,056 37,056

$ 68,000 $ 6,062 74,062

Principal Interest Total

$ 66,000 $ 8,012 74,012
70,000 4,113 74,113

§ 136,000 $ 12,125 148,125

Principal Interest Total

§ 113,000 $ 40,375 153,375
118,000 35,745 153,745
233,000 31,025 264,025
243,000 21,123 264,123
254,000 10,825 264,825

§ 961,000 $ 139,093 1,100,093

Principal Interest Total

$ 35,000 $ 11,305 46,305
36,000 9,818 45,818
37,000 8,288 45,288
38,000 6,715 44,715
39,000 5,100 44,100
81,000 5,185 86,185

$ 266,000 $ 46,411 312,411

Principal Interest Total

§ 100,668 $ 6,068 106,736
103,658 3,078 106,736

$ 204,326 $ 9,146 213,472
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There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures including, among
others, the requirements of the payment of principal and interest from the ad valorem tax levy or from the net
revenues of the water fund and the provision of certain reserve funds. The City is in compliance with all such
significant financial limitations and restrictions. There is no specific maximum debt limit established by law
for the City, therefore, the limit is governed by the City’s ability to levy and collect taxes to service the debt.

Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2023 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences $ 10,722 % -3 - % 10,722 $ -
Total OPEB liability 36,394 - (7,712) 28,682 -
Governmental Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 47,116 $ - $ (7,712) $§ 39404 $ -
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bonds Payable $1,668,000 $ - $(237,000) $1,431,000 $ 247,000
Notes Payable 302,090 (97,764) 204,326 100,668
Compensated absences 12,868 - 12,868 -
Total OPEB liability 24,237 (12,917) 11,320 -
Business-Type Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $2,007,195 $ (347,681) $1,659,514 $ 347,668
Total Long-Term Liabilities $2,054311  $ - $ (355,393) $1,698918 $ 347,668

G. PROPERTY TAXES

The appraisal of property within the City is the responsibility of the McLennan County Appraisal District (the
District). The District is required under the Property Tax Code to assess all property within the District on the
basis of 100% of its appraised value and is prohibited from applying any assessment ratios. The value of
property within the District must be reviewed every four years.

The City’s property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all
real and business personal property located in the City. The net assessed value, net of exemptions, upon
which the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, levy was based was $ 88,708,669. The tax rate for the 2023
tax roll was $ 0.46 per $ 100 of assessed value.

Property taxes not collected in the current period are considered not to be available, and therefore, are not
accrued as revenue in the current period. Since the City recognizes taxes as revenues only when collected, an
allowance for current and delinquent taxes receivable at the end of the period has been established. On the
government-wide statements, the amount deferred in the fund statements is recognized as revenue.
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The City has contracted with McLennan County tax collector’s office to collect ad valorem taxes on behalf of
the City. The City paid the tax collector $ 2,001 for these services during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2023.

H. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN
Plan Description

The City participates as one of more than 900 plans in the defined benefit cash-balance plan administered by
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is a statewide public retirement plan created by the
State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government
Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for employees of Texas participating
cities. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of TMRS with a six-member,
Governor-appointed Board of Trustees; however, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.
TMRS issues a publicly available annual comprehensive financial report that can be obtained at
WWW.Imrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.
Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing
body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes government TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated based on the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and
the city-financed monetary credits with interest. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in
one of seven payment options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a lump sum
distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the
member’s contributions and interest.

A summary of plan provisions for the City are as follows:

Employee deposit rate 7.00%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 1.5t01
Years required for vesting 5
Retirement eligibility

(Age/Service) 60/5, 0/25
Updated service credit 100% Repeating Transfers
Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI Repeating
Supplemental death benefit to

active employees Yes
Supplemental death benefit to

retirees Yes
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms.

At the December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 6
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 27
Active employees 17
Total 50
Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee total compensation and
the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the
city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the
actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The City’s contribution rate is based on
the liabilities created from the benefit plan options selected by the City and any changes in benefits or actual
experience over time.

Employees for the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year.
The contribution rates for the City were 5.09% and 5.10% in calendar years 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Accordingly, contributions to TMRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, were $ 28,463 and were
equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s Net Pension Liability (Asset) was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the Total Pension
Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability (Asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial Assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions.

Inflation 2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.50% to 11.50% including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.75% net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
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Salary increases are based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on the PUB
(10) mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General Employee table used for
females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal
Retirees of Texas mortality tables. The rates for active, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a
fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitant,
the same mortality tables for healthy retirees is used with a 4-year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-
forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum mortality rate is applied, for males and females
respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on
a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements subject to the floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of experience of TMRS
over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018. They were adopted in 2019 and
first used in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for
Annuity Purchase Rates (APRs) is based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009
through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis
on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-
term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2023 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected Real
Target Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Arithmetic)
Global Equity 35.0% 7.70%
Core fixed income 6.0% 4.90%
Non-core fixed income 20.0% 8.70%
Other public and private markets 12.0% 8.10%
Real estate 12.0% 5.80%
Hedge funds 5.0% 6.90%
Private equity 10.0% 11.80%

Total 100.0%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employees and employer contributions would be made at the rates
specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected

benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Balance at December 31, 2021

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions

Administrative expense

Other
Net changes

Balance at December 31, 2022

Increase (Decrease)

Net Pension

Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary Liability
Liability Net Position (Asset)
(@ (b) (@) - (b)
§ 1,335831 § 1,584,002 § (248,171)
73,427 - 73,427
90,878 - 90,878
(15,640) - (15,640)
- 30,635 (30,635)
- 42,131 (42,131)
- (115,231) 115,231
(52,412) (52,412) -
- (1,001) 1,001
- 1,194 (1,194)
96,253 (94,684) 190,937
$ 1,432,084 § 1,489,318 §  (57,234)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as
well as what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Current
Single Rate
1% Decrease  Assumption 1% Increase
5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
City's net pension liability (asset) $ 164,913 $ (57,234) § (237,219)
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the Schedule of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position, by Participating City. That report may be obtained at trms.com.

Pension Expense (Income) and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $ 18,947. At

September 30, 2023 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic

experience $ - $ 21,739
Changes in actuarial assumptions 140 -

Difference between projected and actual investment
earnings 177,720 76,493
Sub-total 177,860 98,232
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 25,963 -
Total $ 203,823 $ 98,232

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date of $§ 25,963 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset) for the
measurement year ending December 31, 2023 (i.e., recognized in the City’s financial statement
September 30, 2024).

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

Measurement Net Deferred
Year Ended Outflows (Inflows)
December 31, of Resources
2023 $ (13,857)
2024 22,059
2025 26,999
2026 44,427
Total $ 79,628
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

I. SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND
Plan Description

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City
may terminate coverage under, and discontinue participation in this fund by adopting an ordinance before
November 1, or any year to be effective the following January 1. The SDBF does not meet the definition of a
trust under GASB No. 75 since it does not accumulate assets in a trust, and as such is considered to be a
single-employer unfunded OPEB plan.

Benefit Providers

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s
annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the
month of death); retired employees are insured for § 7,500; this coverage is an “other post-employment
benefit,” or OPEB. The City offers supplemental death benefit to both active employees and retirees for plan
years 2023 and 2022.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits 5
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 4
Active employees 17
Total

Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determine by an annual actuarial
valuation, which was 0.55% for 2023 and 0.38% for 2022, of which 0.42% and 0.31%, respectively,
represented the retiree-only portion, as a percentage of annual covered payroll. The rate is equal to the cost of
providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate
resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to prefund
retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers. The City’s contributions to the SDBF for the
years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 were $ 3,556 and $ 2,024, respectively, representing contributions
for both active and retiree coverage, which equaled the required contributions each year.
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Total Other Post Employment Benefits Liability
Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions were developed from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS over the
four year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018. These assumptions were adopted in 2019
and first used in the December 31, 2019 valuation.

All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.

The Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 is used as the basis for the post-
retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs). Mortality rates for
service employees uses the RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis with scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

Inflation 2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.50% to 11.50% per year including inflation
Discount rate 4.05%

Changes in the Total Other Post Employment Benefits Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Liability
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 60,631
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,830
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 1,124
Changes of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual
experience (5,293)
Changes of assumptions (17,424)
Benefit payments (1,866)
Net changes (20,629)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 40,002
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the current discount rate of
4.05% as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower (3.05%) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.05%) than the current rate. Because the
SDBEF is considered an unfunded trust, the relevant discount rate to calculate the total OPEB liability is based
on the Fidelity’s Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index”.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
3.05% 4.05% 5.05%
Total OPEB liability $ 46,752 $ 40,002 $ 34,549

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense of $ 1,311. At
September 30, 2023 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources
Differences in actual vs assumption $ 2,447 $ 7,154
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 6,199 15,678
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 2,230 -
Total $ 10,876 $ 22,832

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement
date of $ 2,230 will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability for the measurement year ending
December 31, 2023 (i.e., recognized in the City’s financial statement September 30, 2024). Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense
as follows:

Net Deferred

Measurement Year  Qutflows (Inflows) of
Ended December 31, Resources

2023 $ (2,791)

2024 (2,977)

2025 (2,807)

2026 (2,059)

2027 (1,322)

Total $ (11,956)
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J. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Water Purchase Agreement

The City has entered into a long-term agreement to purchase water from a water supply company. The
contract requires the City to take and/or pay for a minimum quantity of water. The cost of water per gallon is
based each year on the amount the water supply corporation needs to recover all operation and maintenance
expenses and debt service of the system (i.e. its annual requirement). The water supply company’s net annual
requirement divided by all contracting parties’ minimum take (annual water purchases in gallons) determines
the rate per gallon each year. Based on the estimated annual requirements of the water supply company
(estimated $ 3.50 per thousand gallons) and the minimum take (116,160,000 gallons) for the City; the City is
committed to pay an estimated $ 406,560 for water during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, under
this contract.

K. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has joined other governments in
Texas to form the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, a public entity risk pool currently
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for liability, property and workers’
compensation coverage. The City pays a quarterly contribution to the pool for its insurance coverage. The
agreement for formation of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool provides the Pool will
be self-sustaining through member contributions and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims
in excess of specific limits.

The Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool has published its own financial report, which can
be obtained by writing to the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, 1821 Rutherford Lane,
Austin, Texas 78754.

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees accrue vacation leave based on the number of years employed up to a maximum of 20 days per
year. The accrual year starts with the date employee starts full-time and subsequent anniversary dates.
Employees may carry over earned vacation past the accrual year with approval of Mayor and Council.
However, the accrual is not to exceed forty days beyond the end of the fiscal year. Upon separation from
service, employees are paid for any earned and unused vacation time. Vested vacation is recorded in the
proprietary fund as a liability and expense and in the government fund as a fund liability and expenditure, if
payable from current resources. The value of the earned and unused portion of governmental compensated
absences at year-end is reported as a governmental activity non-current liability.

M. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has reviewed and evaluated subsequent events through December 18, 2023, the date of the
independent auditor’s report.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - TMRS PENSION PLAN

(UNAUDITED)
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial (Over-funded) UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded AAL Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (c)=(a’b) (d)=(b-a) (e) (d)/(e)
12/31/19  $§ 1,257,111 $ 1,176,674 106.8% $  (80,437) $§ 602,118 -13.4%
12/3120  $ 1,347,111 $§ 1,246,845 108.0% $ (100,266) $ 527,523 -19.0%
12/31/21  $ 1,454,585 § 1,335,831 108.9% $ (118,754) $ 511,256 -23.2%
12/31/22  $ 1,561,975 $§ 1,432,084 109.1% $ (129,891) § 601,864 -21.6%

See independent auditor’s report.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Date December 31, 2014 2015 2016
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 54,818 $ 59,965 $ 70,311
Interest (on the total pension liability) 52,962 57,485 62,206
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience 6,337 (2,980) 14,860
Changes of assumptions - 28,121 -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (59,705) (44,461) (50,341)
Net change in total pension liability 54,412 98,130 97,036
Total pension liability - beginning 759,045 813,457 911,587
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 813,457 $ 911,587 $ 1,008,623
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 11,011 $ 22,932 $ 24,767
Contributions - employee 31,687 34,154 38,785
Net investment income 50,496 1,351 62,762
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (59,705) (44,461) (50,341)
Administrative expense (527) (823) (708)
Other (43) (41) (38)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 32,919 13,112 75,227
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 882,942 915,861 928,973
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 915,861 $ 928,973 $ 1,004,200
City's net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b) $ (102,404) §$ (17,386) § 4,423
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 112.59% 101.91% 99.56%
Covered-employee payroll $ 452,668 $ 487917 $ 554,066
City's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage -22.62% -3.56% 0.80%

of covered-employee payroll
Notes to Schedule:

10 years of information is required to be provided in this schedule, but information prior to 2014 is not
available.

See independent auditor’s report.
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 72681 $ 78723 $ 77613 $ 66573 $ 65339 § 73,427
69,034 74,069 79,197 79,528 84,490 90,878
(18,354) 6,329 (62,632) (12,380) (5,216) (15,640)

- - 1,052 - - -

(44,461) (59,130) (106,070) (63,550) (55,627) (52,412)
78,900 99,991 (10,840) 70,171 88,986 96,253
1,008,623 1,087,523 1,187,514 1,176,674 1,246,845 1,335,831
$ 1,087,523 § 1,187.514 $ 1,176,674 $ 1246845 $ 1335831 § 1,432,084
$ 30,179 $ 34245 $ 31551 $ 30,175 $ 26074 S 30,635
40,315 43,909 42,148 36,927 35,788 42,131
139,115 (34,884) 177,542 98,090 181,471 (115,231)
(44,461) (59,130) (106,070) (63,550) (55,627) (52,412)
(721) (677) (1,006) (637) (843) (1,001)

(37) (34) (1) (25) 6 1,194
164,390 (16,571) 144,134 100,980 186,869 (94,684)
1,004,200 1,168,590 1,152,019 1,296,153 1,397,133 1,584,002

$ 1,168,590 $ 1,152,019 $ 1296153 § 1,397,133 $ 1,584,002 § 1,489,318
$  (81,067) $ 35495 $ (119479) $ (150,288) $ (248,171) $  (57.234)
107.45% 97.01% 110.15% 112.05% 118.58% 104.00%

$ 575922 $ 627274 $ 602,118 $ 527,523 $ 511256 S 601,864
-14.08% 5.66% -19.84% -28.49% 48.54% 9.51%
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 20,175 $ 23,518 $ 27,827 $ 33936 $ 35,535
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution 20,175 23,518 27,827 33,936 35,535
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -3 - 8 - $ - § -
Covered employee payroll $481,101  $520,306  $552,658  $628,394  $613,795
Contributions as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 4.19% 4.52% 5.04% 5.40% 5.79%

Notes to Schedule of Contributions
Valuation Date:

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, and
Notes become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period N/A

Asset Valuation Method 10 year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 11.50% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of benefits. Last
updated for the 2019 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2014 -
2018.

Mortality Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The rates are

projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.

Pre-retirement: PUB(10) mortality tables, with the Public Safety table used for males
and the General Employee table used for females. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.

Other Information:
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.

10 years of information is required to be provided in this schedule, but information prior to 2015 is not available.

See independent auditor’s report.

-60 -



2020 2021 2022 2023
$ 31,743 $ 26,413 $ 28,463 $ 31,559
31,743 26,413 28.463 31,559
$568,158  $503.699  $558.949  $698.253
5.59% 5.24% 5.09% 4.52%
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Measurement Date December 31,
Total OPEB Liability

Service cost
Interest (on the total OPEB liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)
Covered Employee Payroll

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ 1382 $ 1,756 $ 1,626 $ 1,846 $ 2556 S 2,830
1,392 1,417 1,538 1,471 1,178 1,124
- (1,215) 91 4,568)  (1,750)  (5,293)
3,421 (2,866) 9,015 7,048 1,650  (17,424)
(403) (376) (361) G17)  (1227)  (1,866)
5,792 (1,284) 11,909 5,480 2407  (20,629)
36,327 42,119 40,835 52,744 58,224 60,631
$ 42,119 $ 40,835 $ 52,744 $ 58224 $ 60,631 S 40,002
$575,922  $627.274  $602,118  $527,523  $511,256  $601,864
7.31% 6.51% 8.76%  11.04%  11.86% 6.65%

This schedule is intended to present information for ten years. However, previous years' information is not available.

Other Information:

Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan, benefit payments are treated as being equal to the
employer's yearly contributions for retirees.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay

related benefits.

In order to determine the retiree portion of the City's Supplemental Death Benefit Plan contributions (that
which is considered OPEB), the City should perform the following calculation:

Total covered payroll x Retiree Portion of SDB Contribution (Rate)

See independent auditor’s report.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions in relation to the
actualrially determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

Valuation Date:

Notes

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
377 8 368 $ 341 S 1209 $ 2,024 $ 3,556
377 368 341 1,209 2,024 3,556
- - -3 -3 - -
$628,394  $613,795 $568,158  $503,699  $558,949  $698,253
0.06% 0.06% 0.06% 0.24% 0.36% 0.51%

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December
31, and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Inflation

Salary Increases

Discount rate*

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs

Administrative expenses

Mortality rates - service retirees

Mortality rates - disables retirees

Other Information:

Notes

See independent auditor’s report.

2.50%

3.50% to 11.50% including inflation

2.00%

$0

All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 68.
2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set-
forward for males and a 3 year set forward for females. In addition, a
3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the
impairment for younger members who become disabled for males and
females, respectively. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the floor.

10 years of information is required to be provided in this schedule, but
information prior to 2018 is not available.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

with Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2022

2023 2022
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Revenues
Property taxes $ 409,100 $ 409,100 $ 414306 $ 5206 $ 408,211
Sales and miscellaneous taxes 100,000 100,000 129,031 29,031 112,512
Franchise taxes 60,000 60,000 58,088 (1,912) 56,196
Fines and forfeitures 265,600 265,600 285,411 19,811 287,763
Licenses and permits 11,500 11,500 39,578 28,078 15,418
Interest income 18,000 18,000 109,038 91,038 16,796
Miscellaneous income 20,598 20,598 89,454 68,856 371,747
Total Revenues 884,798 884,798 1,124,906 240,108 1,268,643
Expenditures
General government:
Salaries & wages 213,990 213,788 213,786 2 152,062
Payroll taxes and insurance 61,889 62,458 62,451 7 44,179
Administrative costs 52,172 63,068 62,964 104 52,452
Utilities 17,500 17,362 15,857 1,505 14,446
Legal and accounting 31,934 24,921 23,301 1,620 10,144
Repairs and maintenance 5,200 6,054 6,051 3 6,202
Public safety:
Salaries & wages 315,694 317,740 317,737 3 224,084
Payroll taxes and insurance 92,418 103,674 103,642 32 57,086
Operating costs 131,247 117,845 155,809 (37,964) 156,409
Equipment 102,000 102,280 90,706 11,574 202,457
Legal and accounting 35,434 24,376 20,057 4319 15,105
Repairs and maintenance 20,100 23,292 23,220 72 18,629
Highways and streets:
Streets 41,750 41,970 41,968 2 14,791
Capital outlay - 2,500 2,500 - 55,977
Total Expenditures 1,121,328 1,121,328 1,140,049 (18,721) 1,024,023
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (236,530) (236,530) (15,143) 221,387 244,620
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 236,530 236,530 - (236,530) -
Total other financing sources 236,530 236,530 - (236,530) -
Net change in fund balance - - (15,143) (15,143) 244,620
Fund Balance - beginning of year 3,036,251 3,036,251 3,036,251 - 2,791,631
Fund Balance - end of year $ 3,036,251 § 3,036,251 $ 3,021,108 $§ (15,143) $ 3,036,251

See independent auditor’s report.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - WATER FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023
with Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2022

2023 2022
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Operating Revenues
Water $1,693,000 $1,693,000 $ 1,903,933 $§ 210,933 $ 1,712,863
Garbage 150,000 150,000 153,381 3,381 139,787
Water tap fees 70,000 70,000 71,500 1,500 78,450
Re-connect fees 43,600 43,600 48,983 5,383 43,216
Total Operating Revenues 1,956,600 1,956,600 2,177,797 221,197 1,974,316
Operating Expenses
Water purchases 395,000 633,551 633,551 - 339,920
Water system utilities 148,300 145,531 137,322 8,209 142,244
Other water system expenses 138,751 84,546 49,939 34,607 44,884
Repairs and maintenance 78,650 66,389 34,835 31,554 36,815
Water System Supplies 89,500 89,628 88,626 1,002 98,719
Personnel and support 232,000 224,976 231,795 (6,819) 239,072
Professional fees 72,434 21,725 18,431 3,294 55,919
Administrative expenses 96,264 109,484 115,187 (5,703) 104,551
Garbage collection fees 147,600 147,600 147,225 375 134,667
Depreciation and amortization - - 259,861 (259,861) 233,956
Total Operating Expenses 1,398,499 1,523,430 1,716,772 (193,342) 1,430,747
Operating Income 558,101 433,170 461,025 27,855 543,569
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 25,000 25,000 76,288 51,288 13,743
Interest expense (82,042) (83,712) (83,855) (143) (97,148)
Donations emergency service
Income 2,000 2,000 1,668 (332) 1,845
Expense (2,000) (1,550) (1,506) 44 (1,826)
Capital outlay (192,294) (66,000) (27,808) 38,192 -
Miscellaneous income 26,000 26,000 62,107 36,107 7,934
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) (223,336) (98,262) 26,894 125,156 (75,452)
Change in net position 334,765 334,908 487,919 153,011 468,117
Net Position - beginning of year 5,140,491 5,140,491 5,140,491 - 4,672,374
Net Position - end of year $5475,256  $5,475399 $ 5,628,410 $ 153,011 $ 5,140,491

See independent auditor’s report.
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CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED BUDGETARY INFORMATION
FOR TH YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBRER 30, 2023

A. BUDGETARY DATA

The City adopts its annual budget on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP basis) for the General Fund. The Water Fund budget is prepared on a basis
(budget basis) which differs from GAAP basis. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The
appropriated budget is prepared by fund and function. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.

1. The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

b.

B.

Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed budget for
the fiscal year beginning on the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing those expenditures.

Public hearings are conducted at which all interested persons’ comments concerning the budget are heard.
The budget is legally enacted by the City Council.

Budget revisions may be made during the period.

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The City over-expended its budget as follows:

General Fund

Operating cost $ 37,964
Proprietary Water Fund

Personnel and support $ 6,819

Administrative expenses $ 5,703

Depreciation and amortization $ 259,861

See independent auditor’s report.
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INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-67 -



This page is left blank intentionally.

-68 -



CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS - GENERAL FUND

September 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable, net

Due from other funds

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
State criminal costs and fees payable

Other accrued expenses

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred CLFR fund revenue
Unavailable revenues - property tax
Unavailable revenues - lease income

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Restricted for:
Court technology and building security
Public safety
Child safety

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances

See independent auditor’s report.
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2023 2022
$ 54,936 § 210,985
2,743,580 2,554,114
12,175 11,825
43,041 16,106
658,245 783,685
$ 3,511,977 $3,576,715
$ 12,208 § 69,822
26,435 14,965
8,015 11,817
46,658 96,604
421,324 421,324
12,175 11,824
10,712 10,712
444,211 443,860
9,907 13,775
205,090 343,322
6,889 4,820
2,799,222 2,674,334
3,021,108 3,036,251
§ 3,511,977 $3,576,715




CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION —- WATER FUND
September 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificate of deposits
Customer deposits
Net pension asset
Due from other funds
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Water facilities
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

See independent auditor’s report.
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2023 2022
$ 2381,283 $ 2,275,799
210,011 164,713
2,591,294 2,440,512
286,647 280,429
62,845 60,744
44,117 54,286
16,196 99,204
814,071 836,488
476,262 476,262
185,113 185,113
6,186,087 6,017,425
1,022,876 971,838
(4276237)  (4,064,903)
3,594,101 3,585,735
7,409,271 7,357,398
57,678 10,080
3,078 5,329
60,756 15,409
7 470,027 7,372,807




LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds and notes payable - current portion
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds and notes payable
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions
Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Debt service

Capital projects

Customer deposits
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

-71 -

2023 2022
97,580 33,276
9,417 94,828
40,847 44,835
347,668 334,764
495,512 507,703
12,868 12,868
11,320 24,237
1,287,658 1,635,326
1,807,358 2,180,134
27,798 49,745
6,461 2,437
34,259 52,182
1,841,617 2,232,316
1,958,775 1,615,645
286,647 280,429
62,845 60,744
44,117 54,286
3,276,026 3,129,387
5628410 S 5,140,491
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

FABGEN
[l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Bruceville-Eddy, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the City, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

-73-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

%AWM wson, FC

Temple, Texas
December 18, 2023
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Agenda ltem #4

Ghe City of, Buscevitle-Eddy Rising into. the Futuwne

144 Wilcox Drive www.bruceville-eddy.us Phone: (254) 859-5964
Eddy, Texas 76524 Fax: (254)859-5779

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby request to be placed on the agenda

l . — N C/ zZo2 .
of: - /L’@é 2l 202340 discuss the following:

Ve TPl ,}/7/4- 40 et S ES !C'///'} 7‘/"& / 7o

bus /1€SS WAL Ve v pa ot/ /77004/7
L _
Dated this_ & dayof S et 2023 Z’O??‘z

o 1 A
Print Name: (g7 p 12207 /- )G & 4

Signature: CCA,\) fj\') 4‘/{&/\\

Phone Number for contact: Home: Cell: 2S¢/ (%/ O~ ;/ ) o >

Address: /0 2. A0 ’D /\fé/fzé/

)
IMUST BE APPROVED BY MAYOR] Mayor ’\CZﬂC >

Moved to next agenda of regular council session for approval:




Authentisign ID: 53E72E4C-AA17-46A4-A7F5-5E708830DD88

Agenda Item #7

From: Ennis and Tita Charleston December 15, 2023

To: City of Bruceville Eddy

RE: Zone change @ 413 4" St, Eddy

Please accept this letter as request to change the zoning on the above referenced property from current
A zoning to MH zoning.

We are requesting the change to facilitate the sell of property to Yoana Melendes.

It is believed that the zone change will bring added value to the tax base as well as add additional
affordable housing options to the area.

The zoning change is consistent with the current single family residential in the area.

Thank you for your consideration

Authenti
Ennis Charleston

_12/19/2023 5:29:40 PM GMT

Ennis Charleston

gut enti
1 12023 5:43: T



Authentisign ID: 53E72E4C-AA17-46A4-ATF5-5E708830DD88

BRUCEVILLE
@Eddy CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY- ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION

X General Zoning Change $300.00 O Conditional Use Permit $500.00

Name(s) of Property Owner: Ennis B Charleston and Tita Charleston

Current Address: 2049 Mackey Ranch Rd

City:  Eddy State: | 1X Zip 15924
Primary Phone: () - Cell Phone: () ;
Email:
Name of Applicant: Jerry Dyer
(If different than Property Owner)
Adigees 2040 Comal St
City:__Waco State: X Zip: 76708
Primary Phone: ( 254 ) 379 . 2937 Cell Phone: ( ) -
Email: jdyerjr@gmail.com
Address/Location of property to be rezoned: 14.397 acres at 613 4t St, Eddy TX

Legal Description: ___ PREWITT LEVI Acres 14.397

Is the rezone request consistent with the Comprehensive Plan? YES [INO
* If no, a FLUM amendment application must be submitted.

Is there a simultaneous plat application for this property? 1 YES 3 NO

14.397

Total Acreage: Number of Lots: 1

Type of Ownership: [ Sole Ownership [1 Partnership [] Corporation [ Other

Agricultural pocont Use: Vacant

MH

Present Zoning:

Manufactured Home Community

Proposed Zoning: Proposed Use:

Conditional Use Permit for:

This property was conveyed to owner by deed dated April 16, 2020 and recorded in Volume
Page , Instrument Number 2020012450 of the McLennan or Falls County Deed Records.
(Attached)

Is this the first rezoning application on a unilaterally annexed tract?
B Yes (fee not required) ISL No (submit required fee) ’ KV\

City of Bruceville-Eddy (254) 859-5964
144 Wilcox Drive
Bruceville-Eddy. Texas 76524



Authentisign ID: 63E72E4C-AA17-46A4-A7F5-5E708830DD388

CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY- ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION

Requirements for all zoning change application submittals:
All zoning change application materials must be submitted by 11:00 a.m. on the intake deadline.

/ﬁ Completed zoning change application (original, signed)

e  Must be signed by the property owner, or in the case of a corporation or partnership,
documentation must be provided authorizing a single party to sign on behalf of the corporation or

J partnership
Application fee (cash or check, only; checks made payable to City of Bruceville-Eddy)

o  Zoning change application: $300.00
e Conditional Use Permit Application: $500.00

' Description of property location (in one of the following forms)

Property address

Property survey

Legal description (subdivision name with lot and block)
Metes and bounds description

iS/\Varranty deed (showing current ownership of the property)

Letter of request signed by property owner or applicant, including the following
information:

Reason for the request

Proposed use of the property

Whether or how the proposed change will impact the surrounding properties

Whether the request is consistent with the Future Land Use Map

Digital copies of all submittal documents

Electronic copies in .pdf format of g// submittaldocuments

Must be provided on a disc (CD or DVD) or USB flash drive

o  File names should include the name of the plat, and the name of each application document
(i.e. “Jones Addition Field Notes™)

For additional zoning change requirements, please reference
Bruceville-Eddy Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14

Applicant: Sk L\‘l “x]l 2 Case #:

Intake Date: & L‘ AN sl M> Received by: %,\\‘ MM\W\
Amount Paid: § 360 .00 Cash/MO#/ & Receipt #: OOD% ' la()()

City of Bruceville-Eddy (254) 859-5964
144 Wilcox Drive
Bruceville-Eddv. Texas 76524



Authentisign ID: 53E72E4C-AA17-46A4-A7F5-5E708830DD88

BRUCEVILLE

Edy

APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

As owner of the subject property, I hereby appoint the person designated below to act for me, as

my agent in this request.

Name of Agent: Jerry Dyer
Mailing Address: 2040 Comal St
City: Waco State: X Zip: 76708

Home Phone: ( 254) 379

2937

Business Phone: (

I acknowledge and affirm that I will be legally bound by the words and acts of my agent, and by my signature below,

I fully authorize my agentto:

be the point of contact between myself and the City: make legally binding representations of
fact and commitments of every kind on my behalf; grant legally binding waivers of rights and
releases of liabilities of every kind on my behalf; to consent to legally binding modifications,
conditions, and exceptions on my behalf; and, to execute documents on my behalf which are
legally binding on me. This authorization only applies to this specific zoning change request.

I understand that the City will deal only with a fully authorized agent. At any time, it should appear that my agent
has less than full authority to act, then the application may be suspended and I will have to personally participate in
the disposition of the application. I understand that all communications related to this application are part of an official
proceeding of City government and, that the City will rely upon statements made by may agent. Therefore, 1 agree to
hold harmless and indemnify the City of Bruceville-Eddy, its officers, agents, employees, and third parties who
act in reliance upon my agent’s words and actions from all damages, attorney fees, interest and costs arising
from this matter. If my property is owned by a corporation, partnership, venture, or other legal entity, then I certify
that I have legal authority to make this binding appointment on behalf of the entity, and every reference herein to I’,
‘my’, or ‘me’ is a reference to theentity.

Signature of Agent:

Printed/Typed Name of Agent:__J Jars :;DYel”

Printed/Typed Name of Property Owner:

Signature of Property Owner:

Printed/Typed Name of Property Owner:

Signature of Property Owner:

Title:  Consultant
Date: 12/15/2023
Signature of Property Owner:__| Ennis Charleston Title:
Printed/Typed Name of Prope 12.” 9’2;5.):23 oMo Date:
Signature of Property Owner:j@é&%ﬂ Title:
101012023 5452 M GRIT
Date:
Title:
Date:
Title:
Date:

Printed/Typed Name of Property Owner:

*Application must be signed by the individual applicant, by each partner of a partnership, or by an officer of a corporation or

association. FLUM= Future Land Use Map

City of Bruceville-Eddy (254) 859-5964

144 Wilcox Drive
Bruceville-Eddy. Texas

76524

Application Revised: February 25, 2020



Tibhit Surveying

o 6. tx 112 ~ ol T 7303 Plat Showing a 14.397 Acre Tract of
Land 1n the Levi Prewitt Survey,
Abstract No. 723, 1n Mclennan, lTexas.

14.397 A/cres
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%" CAPPED IRON PIN SET
IRON PIN FOUND (SIZE VARIES)
WATER METER
CALCULATED CORNER (NOT SET)
= INTERIOR TRACT/DEED LINE
E = OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE
—  HPTL—— = HIGH POWER TRANSMISSION LINE
X = WIRE FENCE

(RECORD DATA)

X e
I

I, Toby Tibbit, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5496, do hereby certify that the
foregoing Plat and accompanying Field Notes were prepared from a survey made on the
ground, February 15, 2020, the Records of MclLennan County, Texas, and surveys of area
property, that the corners and boundaries with marks Natural and Artificial are just as were
found, on the ground, and that discrepancies, conflicts, protrusions or intrusions, overlapping
of improvements, easements, visible or apparent to me, are shown or described hereon.
Basis of Bearings, Grid North, Texas Central Zone (GPS Observations).

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL THIS _THE 17TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2020.
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ot Toby Tibbit

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5496
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of improvements, easements, visible or apparent to me, are shown or described hereon.
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¢
2020012450 DEED
04/17/2020 12:.03:27 PM Total Pages: 5 Fees: $28.00
J. A."Andy" Harwell, County Clerk - McLennan County,

Notice of confidentiality rights: If you are a natural person, you may remove or strike any
or all of the following information from any instrument that transfers an interest if real
property before it is filed for record in the public records: your Social Security number or

your driver’s license number. \\
DG - pW 5790591 Grkwmo“lﬁ?%li .
TR 0D DAL Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien A \\ ;;
Date: April 16, 2020 _\zix _/]/)
/O
Grantor: JAMES WESLEY BASS and wife, ALISHA R, BASS ( ( Ny N0

,I .'

Grantee: ENNIS B. CHARLESTON JR. and wife, TITA WON CHARL‘ES’I‘@N

Grantee's Mailing Address: 5049 Mackey Ranch Road, Ecldy, Texas 7@3]24 -2521

Consideration: Cash and a note of even date executed bvﬁfan\te:e and/ payable to the order of
VETERANS LAND BOARD OF THE STATE QE. TEXAS in the pri pnncxpal amount of EIGHTY
ONE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($‘8§\T}{10 00). The note is secured by a first and
superior vendor's lien and superior title retained in ih;s ﬂecd in favor of VETERANS LAND
BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS and by a a‘i’rst hcn dee&of trust of even date from Grantee
to GEORGE P. BUSH, Trustee. N

; [, \"‘-3‘

VA
Property (including any mprovemeﬁts}/\BET)NG 4. 15»97 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF THE
LEVI PREWITT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. \lﬁ\ AND BEING PART OF A 9 ACRE TRACT
OF LAND DESCRIBED AS TRACTQNE IN. A\ DEED TO JAMES WESLEY BASS AND
WIFE, ALISHA R. BASS AS ¢ORDEO IN’ DOCUMENT NO. 2019016883 OF THE
OFFICIAL PUBLIC REC S OF‘MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND PART OF A
17.015 ACRE TRACT O EANTQ\IJI:\JCR{EED AS TRACT TWO IN SAID BASS DEED;

AV N

BEGINNING AT A 3fs> IﬁQH\PRONPJN FOUND, AT AN INNER ELL CORNER OF SAID
17.015 ACRE TRACT\AIY{D AT\'THE WESTERNMOST OR NORTHWEST CORNER OF A
2.000 ACRE TRACT éF\bAND DFSCRIBED IN A DEED TO JAMES WESLEY BASS AND
WIFE, ALISHA R, B’KS?\A \REQOR_DED IN VOLUME 705, PAGE 245 OF SAID OFFICIAL
PUBLIC RECORDS ANE} ALSO BEING AT THE NORTHERNMOST OR NORTHEAST
CORNER OF A 02896 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO TEXAS
POWER ANB“L!GHT‘*@O/MPANY AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 635, PAGE 435 OF THE
DEED RE(JO’RDS\@F MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS;

I‘HFNCE\S\SQ DEGT(EES 46 MINUTES 03 SECONDS W, WITH A SOUTHEAST LINE OF
SAIB i7 OIB\AE\RE TRACT AND NORTHEAST LINES OF SAID 0.2896 ACRE TRACT
AND ATMCT OF LAND ALSO OWNED BY TEXAS POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY
{\ND KNO“[N AS THE OLD EDDY SUBSTATION SITE, 214.74 FEET, TO A 1/2 INCH
\CAPPED/IR(ON PIN, SET, AT AN OUTER ELL CORNER OF SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT
AV&AT/ THE WESTERNMOST OR NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID OLD EDDY
SUBSTATION SITE AND ALSO BEING IN THE NORTHEAST LINE OF A 4.085 ACRE



2020012450 04/17/2020 12:03:27 PM  Page 2 of 5

TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO EDWARD 8. PETROSKY AND WIFE,
MARTHA A. PETROSKY AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 1731, PAGE 611 OF SAIDDEED
RECORDS, FROM WHENCE A 3/8 INCH IRON PIN, FOUND, IN THE NORTHEAST\L}NE
OF SAID 4.085 ACRE TRACT AND ON THE NORTHWEST SIDE OF FRANKLI'NRQA

ALSO KNOWN AS EDDY-MOODY ROAD, BRS. S 30 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 47\
— Yoo

SECONDS E, 251.36 FEET; [ \\ )Y
THENCE, N 30 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 47 SECONDS W, WITH THE Céli{MON 1;113}5 oF
SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT AND SAID 4.085 ACRE TRACT, 265.64 EEET, TQ A 1/2'INCH
CAPPED IRON PIN, FOUND, AT THE NORTHERNMOST OR NORFHEAST.CORNER OF
SAID 4.085 ACRE TRACT AND AT THE EASTERNMOST CORNER OF AN $4.835ACRE
TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO EDDY IL LAND HOLDCO, LLC AS
RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2018002926 OF SAID'GFFICIAL gt\fBLrC RECORDS;

THENCE, N 30 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 21 SECONDS|\W, WITH THE NORTHEAST LINE
OF SAID 84.835 ACRE TRACT AND A 44.353 ACRE TRAGT DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO
THE CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY AS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2019009018 OF
SAID OFFICTAL PUBLIC RECORDS, CROSSING A PORTION OF SAID 17.015 ACRE
TRACT, 481.91 FEET, TO THE CALCULATED WTERSECTION OF SAID NORTHEAST
LINE OF SAID 84.835 ACRE TRACT AND-A 44353 ACRE TRACT WITH THE
NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID 17.015 ACRE/TRACT AND THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF
SAID 9 ACRE TRACT, FROM WHENCE A 3/8 TNCH IRON PIN, FOUND, AT THE
WESTERNMOST CORNER  OF “SAID 1Z.CQ1 5//ACRE TRACT AND AT THE
SOUTHERNMOST CORNER OF SAID-9-ACRE’TRACT, BRS. S 23 DEGREES 36
MINUTES 10 SECONDS W,21.20 FEET, .

e

THENCE, N 23 DEGREES(36 M[]\&I}‘{ES 10)SECONDS E, WITH A NORTHWEST LINE OF
SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT AND A-SOUTHEAST LINE OF SAID 9 ACRE TRACT, 477.50
FEET, TO A 3/8 INCLJ(;R?NT PIN; FOUND, AT AN INNER ELL CORNER HEREOF;

A . - .

THENCE, THROUGH THE INTERIOK OF SAID 9 ACRE TRACT, AS FOLLOWS; N 66
DEGREES 27 MINUTES 41 SECONDS W, 162.30 FEET, TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED IRON
PIN, SET, AT AN OUTER ELL.CORNER HEREOF; AND N 26 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 13
SECONDS E, 26932°FEET,“TO A 12 INCH CAPPED IRON PIN, SET, AT THE
NORTHERNMOST CORNER HEREOF IN THE NORTHEAST LINE OF SAID 9 ACRE
TRACT AND_IN. THE SQUTHWEST LINE OF FOURTH STREET, A PAVED, CITY
MAINTAINED, PUBLIC ROADWAY;

S
TH-EyCé\ié\aﬁ DEGREES 27 MINUTES 41 SECONDS E, WITH THE NORTHEAST LINE
OF-SAID 9-ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF SAID FOURTH STREET,
148.00-EEET, TO’A 3/8 INCH IRON PIN, FOUND, AT THE EASTERNMOST CORNER OF
{_SAID 9 ACRE TRACT AND AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF
“\_SAID FOURTH STREET WITH THE NORTHWEST LINE OF BORDER STREET (NOT
CURRENTLY OPEN TO TRAFFIC), SHOWN ON KINCANNON ADDITION NO. 3,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF RECORD IN VOLUME 186, PAGE 588 OF SAID DEED
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RECORDS, FROM WHENCE A 1/2 INCH IRON PIN, FOUND, BRS. S 66 DEGREES 20
MINUTES 44 SECONDS E, 50.11 FEET; \\ \\

THENCE, § 23 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 44 SECONDS W, WITH THE SOUTHEAST LINE
OF SAID 9 ACRE TRACT AND THE NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID BORDER- STREEsr\
159.86 FEET, TO A 1/2 INCH IRON PIN, FOUND, AT THE NORTHERNMOST €QRNER * \
OF SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT AND AT THE WESTERNMOST CORBfER\OE \SAID
KINCANNON ADDITION NO. 3; AN ) |

e /
THENCE, S 66 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 22 SECONDS E, WITH THENQMHEQSI LINE
OF SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTHWEST LINE(QF A '}l 0 FOOT. WIDE
ALLEY, ALSO SHOWN ON SAID PLAT OF KINCAN MADDTIION be 3, 700.07
FEET, TO A 3/8 INCH IRON PIN, FOUND, AT AN QU R ECL COMR.QF SAID 17.015
ACRE TRACT AND AT THE NORTHERNMOST OR NORTH“’BST ORNER OF A 1.352
ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED Td ROBERT JAN K AND CAROLYN
JANEK AS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 3006020\33.\t OF Sm ) OFFICIAL PUBLIC

RECORDS; —

THENCE, S 23 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 45 SEC‘@NDS W, WITH A SOUTHEAST LINE OF
SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT AND NORTHWEST MNES OF SAID 1.352 ACRE TRACT
AND A 4.49 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED nﬁ -A DEED.TO ROBERT DAN HUBER AS
RECORDED IN VOLUME 1340, PAGE 808 OF SAID DEED RECORDS, AT 147.95 FEET,
PASS A 1/2 INCH CAPPED IRON PN, SET,AT/THE) 'WESTERNMOST OR SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID 1352 ACRE 'f\R)tCT \AND' AT THE NORTHERNMOST OR
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 44195AGR\E\IRACT ON LINE, AND CONTINUING IN
ALL 555.62 FEET, TO A 1/2 mc?( LTRON PIN,; FOUND, AT AN INNER ELL CORNER OF
SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT;AND\AT THE) WESTERNMOST OR SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID 4.49 ACRE T E/‘:T QND ALSO BEING AT THE NORTHERNMOST CORNER OF

SAID 2.000 ACRE TRA‘% T’* \\\\

THENCE, S 18 DEG(&{EE@ OMINUTES 19 SECONDS W, WITH THE NORTHWEST LINE
OF SAID 2.000 ACRE }KRACT \C\R@SSING A PORTION OF SAID 17.015 ACRE TRACT,
297.72 FEET, TO TJ;lErPDmI lg BEGINNING.

e

BEING THE QA*ME PR@P RTY CONVEYED TO JAMES WESLEY BASS AND WIFE
ALISHA R. BASS\BY W RRANTY DEED RECORDED UNDER CLERK'S FILE NO.
2019016883f‘OFEIC‘{AE“PJJBLIC RECORDS, MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS.
i . \\

Reservatr“ls froﬁ’ernveyance None.

\ \\ \
Excepjntms ?o\anvevance and Warranty: Liens described as part of the Consideration;
valldly exﬁmg ea/sements rights-of-way, and prescriptive right
"8, whether ‘ofirecord or not; all presently recorded and validly existing restrictions, reservations,
h \cbv:enants /eonditions, oil and gas leases, mineral interests outstanding in persons other than
C‘rran\for anﬂ other instruments, other than conveyances of the surface fee estate, that affect the
Property, validly existing rights of adjoining owners in any walls and fences situated on a
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commeon boundary; any discrepancies, contlicts, or shortages in area or boundary lines; any
encroachments or overlappmg of improvements; and taxes for the current year, which C&rantee
assumes and agrees to pay. AN

/t “Hﬂ__\___\_x \\

Grantor, for the Consideration and subject to the Exceptions to Conveyanee and
Warranty, grants, sells, and conveys (o Grantee the Property, together with all, @ud iitgular theé\ \

rights and appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, to have and to holgd. fil1 to Gr ﬂie and’ /1

Grantee's heirs, successors, and assigns forever. Grantor binds Grantor and Grah(ors I}EI s and
successors to warrant and forever defend all and singular the Property to »Gfanteé@ﬁd Gfantee's
heirs, successors, and assigns against every person whomsoever lawfull é/ ;zi’élﬁn@\or‘t@ clalm the
same or any part thereof, except as to the Exceptions to Conveyance an Warranty S

The vendor's lien against and superior title to the fgfperty are j\etamed”imtll each note
described is fully paid according to its terms, at which tlme thm deed will become absolute.
\ ||

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronou{ﬁ\mclude)e plural.

VETERANS LAND BOARD OF THE fSMTE OF TEXAS, at Grantee's request, has
paid in cash to Grantor that portion of the purchase’ pncq of the Property that is evidenced by the
note. The first and superior vendor's lien against and supc:t’for title to the Property are retained for
the benefit of VETERANS LAND BOARD OF” HE&TAT\F\OF TEXAS and are transferred to
VETERANS LAND BOARD OF THE STAT )DF; TB}QI&WIthout recourse against Grantor.

\,‘/ \
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THE STATE OF TEx¢s< \j\/\
COUNTY OF McLENN’AN L
/’ ‘\ \,\\> .
This m:.tmment wxas acknowledged before me on April ) , 2020, by JAMES
WESLEY BASS mIQALISHA R. BASS, husband and wife.

U "
T AT e . 3'&‘8.'5&' FAIR ‘ /
[ @J;&c’éﬂo.aw?’”whg ~State o Taxa"'i A /l /I/./; /

(5 orn Exjives 06:06.2023 ! NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS

3 =06
‘L v\‘rn\n\ = : \:‘_;\_E"f ,'..[f-f_fi_f.‘..i.,” :,_,5
, wrﬂac\‘\-— \
a NN )
AN ) ) After recording return to:
\\\\ S/ Mr. and Mrs. Ennis B. Charleston Jr.
SN 5049 Mackey Ranch Road

Eddy, Texas 76524-2521
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FILED AND RECORDED

Instrument Number: 2020012450
Filing and Recording Date: 04/17/2020 12:03:27 PM Pages. 5 Recording Fee: $28.00 /“\

| hereby certify that this instrument was FILED on the date and time stamped hereon \
and RECORDED in the OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS of McLennan County, Texas. N\

Q 7.2 : / f_/:x\ahﬂh“ﬁ\: \
( N

J. A. "Andy" Harwell, County Clerk
McLennan County, Texas T
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City of Bruceville-Eddy

143 Wilcox Drive 254-859-5964
Eddy, Texas 76524 www.bruceville-eddy.us 254-859-5779 fax

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE TO BE SENT TO PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 200 FEET OF PROPOSAL TO REZONING

January 2, 2024

Re: Requested Zoning Change

The Bruceville-Eddy City Council will hold a public hearing on February 22, 2024 at 6:00pm, in the City
Council Chambers, Bruceville-Eddy City Hall, 144 Wilcox Drive, Eddy, Texas. This is for considering a change
of zoning from an Agricultural District to Manufactured Home District. This would be on property described
below and located as follows:
613 4™ Street, Eddy, Texas 76524
14.397 acres, Levi Prewitt Survey
Property ID# 105225

This Public hearing is open to any interested persons. Opinions, objections, and/or comments relative to
this matter only, may be expressed in writing or in person. You may also be represented by another person,

neighbor, or attorney.

The enclosed map shows the location of the property listed above.

Pam Combs, City Secretary

144 Wilcox Dr, Eddy, Texas 76524
254-859-5964



Notices Mailed to Neighboring Properties

Ennis and Tita Charleston
5049 Mackey Ranch Rd
Eddy, Texas 76524

Oncor Electric Delivery Co, LLC
State and Local Tax Dept.

P. O. Box 139100

Dallas, Texas 75313

Colby Reed
609 4" Street
Eddy, Texas 76524

Vicki Griffith
501 4t St
Eddy, Texas 76524

Betty Dulaney
607 4 St
Eddy, Texas 76524

Rosell D Chacon-Pupo
2507 Burleson Rd # 308
Austin, Texas 78741

Carrie Roudabush
2418 N. Old Bruceville Rd
Bruceville, Texas 76630

Douglas and Judy Mullis
P. 0. Box 160
Eddy, Texas 76524

Beth Petrosky
P. O. Box 564
Eddy, Texas 76524

Shirley and Johnnie Coleman

320 Franklin Rd
Eddy, Texas 76524

Virginia Huber
1802 Meadowlark St
Deer Park, Tx 77536-3746

Bradley Boaz
507 4" St
Eddy, Texas 76524

Ryan Joiner
100 Bruce St
Bruceville, Texas 76630

Julie and Sarah Hoggarth
705 4™ St
Eddy, Texas 76524

Donald Finch
915 Ephesus Church Rd
Hollow Rock, TN 38342-2015

Mark and Regina Nix
235 N Hewitt Dr, Ste 3
Hewitt, Texas 76643

Jose Hernandez
318 Franklin Rd
Eddy, Texas 76524

Carolyn Janek
P O Box 184
Eddy, Texas 76524

Daniel Petru
P. O. Box 556
Eddy, Texas 76524

Laura and Juvenal Rangle
1312 S 415t St
Temple, Texas 76504-6604

Art Castillo
661 Derek Rd
Eddy, Texas 76524

Christopher Mullis
P. O. Box 1851
Temple, Texas 76503

Eddy Il Land Holdco, LLC

clo Cyress Creek Renewables, LLC
Asset Management

3402 Pico Blvd

Santa Monica, CA 90405-2025



@ Waco Tribune-Herald

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Waco Tribune-Herald
PO Box 2588
(254) 757-5757

I, Jesse Sassaman, of lawful age, being duly sworn upon oath depose and
say that | am an agent of Column Software, PBC, duly appointed and
authorized agent of the Publisher of Waco Tribune-Herald, a publication
that is a "legal newspaper" as that phrase is defined for the city of Waco,
for the County of McLennan, in the state of Texas, that this affidavit is Page
1 of 1 with the full text of the sworn-to notice set forth on the pages that
follow, and that the attachment hereto contains the correct copy of what
was published in said legal newspaper in consecutive issues on the
following dates:

PUBLICATION DATES:
Jan. 13, 2024

Notice ID: thilusgLKoGLNNQu9fSR
Publisher ID: 75008
Notice Name: Public Hearing - Zoning CHanges

PUBLICATION FEE: $114.30

Shsso Ansscman

Agent
SHANNEA H HOLMES
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
VERIFICATION My Commission Expires August 1, 2026

State of New Jersey

County of Hudson
Signed or attested before me on this: 01/16/2024

%m;//%@f

Notary Public i o
This notarial act involved the use of communication technology

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
The Bruceville-Eddy City Council will
hold a public hearing February 22,
2024 at 6:00pm in the Bruceville-Ed-
dy City Hall, 144 Wilcox Dr., Eddy,
Texas for the purpose of consider-
ing and adopting zoning changes
from Agricultural District to Manu-
factured Home District. Property de-
scribed and located as follows:

613 4 th 5t, Eddy, Texas 76524
14.397 acres, Levi Prewitt Survey
Property ID# 105225

The Public hearing is open to any
interested persons. Opinions, objec-
tions, and/or comments related to
this matter may only be expressed
in writing, via e-mail, or in person.
Another person or attorney may also
represent you.

Public Hearing - Zoning CHanges - Page 1 of 1
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ORDINANCE NO. 2-22-2024-1

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS,
AMENDING EXHIBIT 14A OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY, THE SAME BEING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY
BY CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION ON A CERTAIN
TRACT OF LAND LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS A 14.397 ACRE TRACT OF
LAND SITUATED IN THE LEVI PREWITT SURVEY ABSTRACT NO. 723
MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO DEED INSTRUMENT
NO. 2020012450, MCLENNAN COUNTY; AND MORE PARTICULARY
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “A”, FROM ITS ZONING
CLASSIFICATION OF AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO
MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT; PROVIDING THAT SUCH
TRACT OF LAND SHALL BE USED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE
AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY;
PROVIDING THAT THE ZONING MAP SHALL REFLECT
MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT FOR THIS PROPERTY;
PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING REPEALING, SEVERABILITY,
AND SAVINGS CLAUSES; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Bruceville-Eddy, Texas (hereinafter referred to as “City”) is a
General Law A Municipality acting under its authority adopted by the electorate pursuant to
Article XI, Section 4 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 6 of the Texas Local Government
Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) adopted Exhibit 14A of its
Code of Ordinances, the same being the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City, which
governs the use and development of land in the City (the “Zoning Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS, the City of Bruceville-Eddy, sees it necessary and prudent to adopt this
ordinance for the purpose of facilitating current and future land uses by amending the
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance; the property described herein and depicted in Exhibit “A”
which is attached and incorporated for a zoning change from agricultural district to manufacturered
home district; and

WHEREAS, after complying with all legal notices, requirements, and conditions, a public
hearing was held before the City Council at which the City Council considered the zoning change,
and among other things, the character of the land and its suitability for particular uses, and
compatibility with surrounding uses, with a view of encouraging the most appropriate use of land
in the City, and the City Council does hereby find that the rezoning approved hereby accomplishes
such objectives.
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRUCEVILLE-EDDY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Findings Incorporated. The findings set forth above are incorporated into
the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein, and found to be true.

SECTION 2. Findings. After due deliberation and consideration of the information and
other materials received at the public hearing, the City Council has concluded that the adoption of
this Ordinance is in the best interests of the City, and of the public health, safety, and welfare.

SECTION 3. Zoning Amendments. Exhibit 14A of the Code of Ordinances of the City,
the same being the City’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, is hereby amended in the following
particulars, and all other articles, chapters, exhibits, sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, and
words not expressly amended hereby are hereby ratified and affirmed.

The zoning district classification on these properties are hereby changed from
agricultural district to manufacturered home district. The properties shall be
subject to all applicable City ordinances and regulations governing a
Manufacturered Home District.

SECTION 4. Zoning Map. The Zoning Map of the City, adopted by Exhibit 14A of the
Code of Ordinances, and on file in the office of the City Secretary is hereby amended to reflect the
foregoing zoning use changes herein made.

SECTION 5. Severability. Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of
this Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is
expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force
and effect. The City hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section,
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections,
subsections, sentences, clauses, and phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION 6. Savings/Repealing Clause. All provisions of any ordinance in conflict with
this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict; but such repeal shall not abate
any pending prosecution for violation of the repealed ordinance, nor shall the repeal prevent a
prosecution from being commenced for any violation if occurring prior to the repeal of the
ordinance. Any remaining portions of said ordinances shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 7. Penalty. Any person, firm, entity or corporation who violates any provision
of this Ordinance or the Zoning Ordinance, as they exist or may be amended, shall be deemed
guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction therefore, shall be fined in a sum not exceeding Two
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($2,000.00). Each continuing day's violation shall constitute a
separate offense. The penal provisions imposed under this Ordinance shall not preclude the City
from filing suit to enjoin the violation. The City retains all legal rights and remedies available to
it pursuant to local, state, and federal law.
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SECTION 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
its adoption and its publication as required by law.

SECTION 9. Open Meeting. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required by law, and that
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by Article
551.041, Texas Government Code.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

On motion by Councilmember , seconded by Councilmember ,
the above and foregoing Ordinance was passed and approved by the following vote:

Ayes:
Abstentions:
Nays:
At regular meeting February 22, 2024.

Linda Owens, Mayor
ATTEST:

Pam Combs, City Secretary
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Exhibit “A”

Property Map

105219
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BRUCEVILLE

Eddy

Police Department

Phone:254-859-5072
Fax: 254-859-5258

143 Wilcox Dr.
Eddy, TX 76524

www.bruceville-eddy.us

Police Department Activity Report: January 1, 2024 — January 31, 2024

Calls for Service: Total 130

890 Dorsey 894 Martinez 895 Erwin 896 Hesterberg
50 27 25 28

Arrest, Offense, Incident

Reports: Total 15
890 Dorsey 894 Martinez 895 Erwin 896 Hesterberg
8 1 3 3

Criminal Offense Arrests:

Total 13
890 Dorsey 894 Martinez 895 Erwin 896 Hesterberg
6 3 2 2

Citations & Warnings: Total 134

890 Dorsey 894 Martinez 895 Erwin 896 Hesterberg
8 citations 23 citations 13 citations 13 citations
1 warning 16 warnings 33 warnings 27 warnings

Citations Total: 57

Warnings Total: 77
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BRUCEVILLE
E

Police Department

143 Wilcox Dr. www.bruceville-eddy.us Phone:254-859-5072
Eddy, TX 76524 Fax: 254-859-5258

Police Department Activity Report: January 1, 2024 — January 31, 2024

Security Checks: 160
School Zone Enforcement: 16
Neighborhood Patrol: 44
Directed Traffic Enforcement: 41


http://www.bruceville-eddy.org/
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Call Type Report
BRUCEVILLE-EDDY POLICE DEPARTMENT

From:  JAN 12024
To:  JAN312024

Call Type Description
ABANDONED VEHICLE

AGENCY ASSIST BRUCEVILLE-EDDY PD

AGENCY ASSIST LORENA PD

AGENCY ASSIST MCLENNAN COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE
AGENCY ASSIST MOODY PD

AGENCY ASSIST OTHER OUTSIDE AGENCY
ANIMAL VIOLATION

CITIZEN CONTACT

CITY ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT

CRIMINAL MISCHIEF

DISABLED VEHICLE

DISORDERLY CONDUCT

DISTURBANCE

DOG AT LARGE - VIOLATION OF CITY ORDINANCE
DRUG OFFENSE

FOLLOW UP INVESTIGATION

HARASSMENT

HIT AND RUN CRASH

INJURY TO A CHILD

INVESTIGATION

LOUD MUSIC/EXCESSIVE NOISE - VIOLATION OF CITY ORDINANCE
MOTOR VEHICLE COLLISION

MOTORIST ASSIST

PARKING VIOLATION

POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

PUBLIC SERVICE
PURSUIT

QUESTIONABLE DEATH
RECKLESS DRIVING
SHOTS FIRED
SUICIDAL SUBJECT

SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE

Number of Calls
2

5

10



THEFT

THREATS

TOWED VEHICLE

TRAFFIC CONTROL

TRAFFIC HAZARD

WARRANT SERVICE

WELFARE CONCERN

11

Page 2 of 2



I BF.UCE‘-’ILLE—EDDVE.

January 2024 Citation Data

Description

COLLISION INVOLVING DAMAGE TO VEHICLE < $200 SEC. 550.022
Disorderly Conduct (Language)

Disorderly Conduct (Language)

Fail to Stop and Render Aid-Misdemeanor

Disregard Stop Sign

Disorderly Conduct (Language)

Possession of Drug Paraphernalia

Possession of Drug Paraphernalia

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Violate DL Restriction (specify)

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility

No Drivers License (when unlicensed)

Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Failed to Yield ROW to Emergency Vehicle

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Failed to Signal Lane Change

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Expired Registration

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility

Failed to Signal Lane Change

Expired Registration

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)

Location

100 BLK KENNEDY LN

100 BLK KENNEDY LN

100 BLK KENNEDY LN

100 BLK KENNEDY LN

100 BLK W 3RD ST AT SB IH 35 FRONTAGE ROAD

100 FRANKLIN RD@UNITED STATED POST OFFICE

204 EAGLE DRIVE

204 EAGLE DRIVE

800 BLK W 3RD ST

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET
800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE RD MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE ROAD / W 3RD ST

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 315
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 315
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 316
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318 FRONTAGE ROA
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318 FRONTAGE ROA
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318 FRONTAGE ROA

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle)
Expired Registration

No Drivers License (when unlicensed)
Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility
Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility
Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Expired Registration

Failed to Signal Lane Change

Expired Registration

Disregard Stop Sign

Disregard Stop Sign

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 SERVICE RD MM 316
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY SERVICE RD MM 315
NB IH 35 SERVICE RD AND HIGHWAY 7

W 3RD ST AT NB IH 35 FRONTAGE ROAD



¥ eRuCEVILLEEDDY

January 2024 Warning Data

Description

Stand or Park in Prohibited Area(standing) (Verbal Warning)

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Disregard Stop Sign (Verbal Warning)

Disregard Stop Sign (Verbal Warning)

Disregard Stop Sign (Verbal Warning)

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Disregard Stop Sign (Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Wrong, Altered, or Obscured License Plate (Verbal Warning)

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Expired Registration (Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Failed to Signal Lane Change (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Operation of Vehicle Without Registration Insignia (Warning)

Operation of Vehicle Without Registration Insignia (Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Wrong, Altered, or Obscured License Plate (Verbal Warning)

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

No License Plate Light (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Wrong, Altered, or Obscured License Plate (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Speeding (exceed Prima Facie limit at time and place for that type vehicle) (Verbal Warning)
Defective Head Lamp(s) (Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Wrong, Altered, or Obscured License Plate (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility (Warning)

Expired Registration (Warning)

Failed to Signal Lane Change (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Operation of Vehicle Without Registration Insignia (Warning)

Location

1 EAGLE DR

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

800 BLOCK W 3RD STREET

HIGHWAY 7 / NB INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 SERVICE RD
HIGHWAY 7 / NB INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 SERVICE RD
HIGHWAY 7 AND NB IH 35 SERVICE RD

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE RD MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE ROAD / W 3RD ST
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 316
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 316
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 316
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 317 FRONTAGE ROA
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318 FRONTAGE ROA
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318 FRONTAGE ROA
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 318 FRONTAGE ROA
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MILE MARKER 319
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 317

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319



Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Failed to Signal Lane Change (Verbal Warning)
Expired Registration (Warning)

Failed to Maintain Financial Responsibility (Warning)
Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Expired Registration (Verbal Warning)

Failed to Signal Lane Change (Verbal Warning)
Defective Tail Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Disregard Stop Sign (Verbal Warning)

Disregarded Official Traffic Control Device (Verbal Warning)
Failed to Signal Lane Change (Verbal Warning)
Defective Stop Lamp(s) (Verbal Warning)

Disregard Stop Sign (Verbal Warning)

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 MM 319

N EDDY AND SB IH 35 SERVICE RD

NB IH 35 SERVICE RD AND HIGHWAY 7

NB IH 35 SERVICE RD AND HIGHWAY 7

NB IH 35 SERVICE RD MM 317

NB IH 35 SERVICE RD MM 317

NB IH 35 SERVICE RD MM 317

SBIH 35 MM 318

W 3RD ST/ INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE RD
W 3RD ST/ INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE RD
W 3RD ST/ INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35 FRONTAGE RD
W 3RD ST AT SB IH 35 FRONTAGE ROAD

W 3RD ST AT SB IH 35 FRONTAGE ROAD
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143 Wilcox Dr. www.bruceville-eddy.us Phone:254-859-5072
Eddy, TX 76524 Fax: 254-859-5258

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER ACTIVITY REPORT:
January 9, 2024 - January 31, 2024

Calls for Service: 14

Security Checks: 96

Citations / Warnings: 0

Juvenile Complaints Filed in Municipal Court: 2

Criminal Offense Arrests: 2
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BEISD SRO Monthly Activity Report:

Admin Assist

Staff Assist

Student Assist

Agency Assist

Citizen Contact

Calls for Service

Incident Report

Criminal Activity/Offense

Suspicious Activity/Person/Circumstances

Traffic Complaint
Traffic Stops
Warnings
Citations

Juvenile Complaint
Adult Arrest
Juvenile Arrest
Warrant Arrest
Parent Conference
Welfare Check
Classes Given

Total:

W W ulTtoo Ul Wo W o™

54



Agenda Item #10

MRB | group R—

February 2, 2024

Mr. Kent Manton

City of Bruceville-Eddy
144 Wilcox Drive

Eddy, TX 76524

RE: CITY OF BRUCEVILLE-EDDY NEW MUNICIPAL GROUNDWATER WELL STUDY
MRB GRrouP PROJECT NO. 0218.23002.000

Dear Mr. Manton:

MRB Group and our sub-consultant, LRE Water has investigated three (3) potential sites
for Bruceville-Eddy’s new well #7. The sites are defined as follows:

Site 1 - Falls County Parcel ID 26844, south of Duty Park and west of Hungry Hill
Road

Site 2 — Falls County Parcel ID 26848, north of FM 1239

Site 3 — Falls County Parcel ID 39994, north of Highway 7

The potential sites are shown on Figure 1.

The other well site that were suggested by the City, Falls County Parcel ID 26840 was not
considered due to its location to Hoolia Creek. This site was too close to the creek and
at high risk of flooding.

LRE Water’s hydrogeologist reviewed each of the sites to determine the preferred well
location based on water quality, yield, and production zones of the target aquifer(s)
beneath each of the potential well sites. LRE Water's Groundwater Availability Study is
aftached. MRB reviewed each of the sites with regard to access, site layout, and
nearby water system infrastructure.

Advantages and disadvantages for each of the sites was reviewed and compiled
below:

303 W. Calhoun Ave., Temple, TX 76501 — Phone: 254-771-2054
TBPE Firm Registration Number F-10615



Mr. Kent Manton
RE: BRUCEVILLE-EDDY NEW MUNICIPAL WATER WELL

MRB group

February 2, 2024
Page 2 of 5

Advantages

Disadvantages

Site 1: South of Duty Park (Parcel ID 26844)

Best Hydrogeologic Location;
recommended by Hydrogeologist
Lower Risk for a Fault Zone issue

8" Watermain Connection on
Hungry Hill Road

No potential sources of
contamination within TCEQ-
required setback distances.
Meets TCEQ requirements for well
placement

Access to the site is long. Need to
fravel around ball fields

Culvert is needed to access site.
Hoolia Creek is nearby and the
floodplain has not been mapped.

Site 2: North of FM 1239 (Parcel ID 26848)

Proposed Well Location with the
least well to well interference
except with City's Well #5.

6" Watermain Connection on FM
1239; Design in progress for 8"
watermain at site.

Located a distance from Hoolia
Creek which minimizes flooding
potential.

Located further away from the
mapped fault zone.

No potential sources of
contamination within TCEQ-
required setback distances except
for the natural gas pipeline within
Va mile.

Meets TCEQ requirements for well
placement.

TCEQ regulations require wells be
a minimum of 150 feet from a
liquid gas tfransmission main.
Additional TCEQ approval will be
needed because the site is within
'/ mile of a natural gas
fransmission main.

Existing Gas Company easement
may have restrictions with regards
tfo construction and access nearby
their facilities.




Mr. Kent Manton
MRB g}fOup RE: BRUCEVILLE-EDDY NEW MUNICIPAL WATER WELL

February 2, 2024

Page 3 of 5
Advantages Disadvantages
Site 3: North of Highway #7 (Parcel ID 39994)

¢ Nice site layout with easy access. e Closest Well to a mapped Fault.

e Meets TCEQ requirement for well e Deepest of the three proposed
placement. wells sites.

e No potential sources of e Most costly well because of the
contamination within TCEQ known fault and well depth.
required setback distances. e The estimated flow from the

proposed well is risky due to its
location near the mapped fault.
The fault can significantly lower (or
raise) well yields.

Preliminary site plan layouts for each of the three sites are attached as Figures 2, 3, and
4. These site layouts are only illustrative and do not reflect a final site design. We have
included a 100,000 gallon ground storage tank, a 10,000-gallon hydropneumatic
storage tank and booster pump station with chemical rooms. An emergency generator
has also been included in the site layout.

LRE Water's report indicates that both the Hensell Sand and Hosston Formations are
available groundwater sources under each of the well sites. The approximate well
depth and estimated well yield in each of the geologic formations is given below:

Site 1 Site 2 Site 3
South of North of FM North of
Duty Park 1239 Highway 7
Estimated Well Depth in Hensel 1,560 1,570 1,640
Sand Formation (feet)
In the Hensel Sand Formation 175* 175* 200*
Estimated Well Yield (gpm)
Estimated Well Depth in Hosston 2,010 2,020 2,120
Formation (feet)
Hosston Formation Estimated 300** 300** 325**
Well Yield (gpm)

*Yield is approximately 50 gpm more when City Wells #3 and #5 are not running.
**Yield is approximately 125 gom more when City Wells #1, #4, and #5 are not running.



Mr. Kent Manton

MRB gr()up RE: BRUCEVILLE-EDDY NEW MUNICIPAL WATER WELL
February 2, 2024

Page 4 of 5

It should be noted that actual well yield rates can only be determined after the drilling
and testing of the proposed well. The table above gives estimated well yields based on
the best available information.

Based on available analytical data on surrounding wells within the same aquifer, water
quality results are generally good. Water from the Hensell Sand formation was found to
be slightly saline and water from the Hosston formation was found to be fresh. In
general, water from deeper formations may have more minerals present. Bruceville-
Eddy’s Well #1 has reportedly exceeded the TCEQ Maximum Contaminate Level (MCL)
for fluoride. Other wells in the surrounding area have reported concentrations of
arsenic, cadmium, and thallium although TCEQ flagged those results as questionable.
Other area wells have also reported exceedances of aluminum, and iron in the Hosston
formation and fluoride and sulfate in the Hensell Sand Member.

According to TCEQ's website, the City of Bruceville-Eddy currently has 1,923
connections to its water system which requires a minimum system capacity of 1,154
gallons per minute (gpm) at 0.6 gpm per connection. The current City of Bruceville-
Eddy wells aggregate rated flow rate is 759 gpm. The City must contract for additional
source water from outside their system to meet TCEQ minimum system requirements.

The proposed well will likely add another 300 gallons per minute to the City's aggregate
capacity but will not eliminate its dependence on outside sources of water. If the City
maintains its current arrangement with Bluebonnet WSC, the new well could provide
approximately 500 new connections at 0.6 gpm per connection.

MRB prepared preliminary estimates for probable construction costs for the three well
sites. These estimates are attached for each of the sites and as summarized below:

Site Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Site 1: South of Duty Park $4,813,000
Site 2: North of FM 1239 $4,616,000
Site 3: North of Highway 7 $6,699,000

Based on the recommendation of the Hydrogeologist, cost estimates and
advantages/disadvantages of the various sites, we recommend Site 1, South of Duty
Park.



Mr. Kent Manton

MRB group RE: BRUCEVILLE-EDDY NEW MUNICIPAL WATER WELL
February 2, 2024

Page 5 of 5

Should you have any questions or would like to discuss further, please contact us.

Sincerely,

JA}’%{M D. 5<u.a/i\ WJ\)A H‘)ﬁjm/
Anthony Beach, PE, CFM Susan A. Hilton, P.E.
Senior Project Manager Project Manager

N:\0218.23002.000\REPORTS\2024-01 Well Location Report.docx

Afttachments: Site Plan,
LRE Water Report,
LRE Water Amendment,
Site Plan 1-3,
Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
2 x o *.l
£rd P Y
P oeelessnsnsapuanansnnanses

e '
% ANTHONY D. BEACH 4

N
02.02.2024



Figure - 1
Bruceville-Eddy, Texas @Wﬂ :ﬁts
Potential Well Sites Y

@ Potential Sites

]
MRB ‘group




IRFOwWATER

CONNECTING WATER TO LIFE

December 1, 2023

Susan Hilton, P.E., Project Manager
MRB Group

15 W. Central Ave

Temple, TX 76501

RE: Groundwater Availability Study for Proposed Well #7 — City of Bruceville-Eddy
Public Water System (PWS ID: TX1550024), Falls County, Texas

Dear Ms. Hilton,

LRE Water, LLC (LRE) has prepared a groundwater availability study for the City of
Bruceville-Eddy on behalf of MRB Group. The purpose of this study is to identify a
preferred well location for Proposed Well #7 based on the quality, yield, and production
zone(s) of the target aquifer(s) beneath three potential wellsites located off State Highway
7 in Falls County, Texas. LRE understands that the City of Bruceville-Eddy Public Water
System (PWS) (PWS ID: TX1550024) contains four (4) active public supply wells, and
two (2) plugged wells (Table 1). Figure 1 illustrates the location of the City of Bruceville-
Eddy CCN (No. 11285), existing and plugged City of Bruceville-Eddy PWS wells, and
potential wellsites for Proposed Well #7.

According to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Water System
Summary Sheet, the City of Bruceville-Eddy PWS currently serves a population of 5,769
residents with 1,923 connections. For this number of connections, the TCEQ requires a
minimum system capacity of 1,154 gallons per minute (gpm) at 0.6 gpm per connection
(8290.45(b)(1)(D)(i)). Per the TCEQ Drinking Water Watch, “rated flow” is documented
by technical specifications (i.e., proposed well capacity based on well design), and “tested
flow” is measured from actual well testing. The system’s aggregated rated flow for active
wells in the City of Bruceville-Eddy PWS is 759 gpm (Table 1). Therefore, the City of
Bruceville-Eddy PWS requires an additional 395 gpm to satisfy the minimum system
production capacity requirements. According to the TCEQ Drinking Water Watch, the City
of Bruceville-Eddy PWS receives other sources of water to meet their minimum system
demands.

1101 Satellite View, Suite 301, Round Rock, TX 78665 | Office: 512-736-6485 | LREWATER.COM
ROCKY MOUNTAIN | MIDWEST | SOUTHWEST | TEXAS
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Table 1. City of Bruceville-Eddy PWS Wells (PWS ID: TX1550024)

TWDB State

Well Name Latitude Longitude Well Number or TCEQ D;—:ivastiﬁﬂu/n;_elgE Screen Well Depth  Rated / Tested
(NAD 83) (NAD 83) Tracking Facility ID 19 . ) Interval(s) (ft) Flow (gpm)
Aquifer Designation
Number
Well #1 —
“Westridge” 31.317873 -97.305394 4046501 G1550024C Hosston Formation 1,608-1,715 1,720 110/ 95
1706 Theresa Ln
Well #2 — “Eddy” 4046602,
302 Eagle Dr 31.296692 -97.253496 (186078 G1550024B Hensell Sand Member Unknown 1,565 102 /80
(Plugged) Plugging Report)
Well #3 — “Friendly
Oaks” 588 Old 31.367062 -97.224625 4047102 G1550024A | Hensell Sand Member Unknown 1,550 50/ 30
Bethany Rd
Well #4 — “Friendly
Oaks” 588 Old 31.367062 -97.224625 4047103 G1550024E Hosston Formation 1,610-1,800 1,810 375/ Unknown
Bethany Rd
« ,, Glen Rose, Hensell
Well #5 —"Tolbert” | 31 588765 | -97.259982 355761 G1550024F | Sand Member,and | +oo2136L 1y 839 | 224/ Unknown
CR 457 . 1,505-1,831
Hosston Formation
Bruceville Well" | - 5 355539 | -97.236406 4047403 G1550024D | Hensell Sand Member | 1,495-1,535 1,535 Unknown

(Plugged)

“TWDB?” indicates Texas Water Development Board, “TCEQ” indicates Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, “NAD83” indicates North American Datum of 1983, “ft” indicates feet, “gpm” indicates

gallons per minute.
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Introduction

For this work, LRE compiled and reviewed publicly available information pertaining to the
geologic structure, lithology, hydraulic properties, and water quality of the target aquifer(s)
beneath three potential wellsites for Proposed Well #7. This included a review of geologic
and hydrogeologic data from published groundwater studies, geologic maps, state well
reports, well drilling reports, water quality analyses, and other applicable information from
published literature. Data sources included the TCEQ, Texas Water Development Board
(TWDB), Submitted Drillers Report (SDR) Database, and LRE files. Hydraulic properties
for the target aquifer(s) were extracted from the Northern Trinity and Woodbine Aquifers
Groundwater Availability Model (“NTWGAM”) (TWDB, 2014), the TWDB Groundwater
Database, the SDR Database, “Aquifer Test and Related Information from Public Water
Supply Wells in Groundwater Management Area 8” Report by Young and others (2012),
and the TWDB Report 195 (“R-195") by Klemt and others (1975).

Proposed Well Locations

LRE reviewed three potential wellsite locations for Proposed Well #7. These wellsite
locations were provided to LRE by MRB Group and include Falls County Parcel Property
ID 28644 (“Wellsite #17), 26848 (“Wellsite #2”), and 39994 (“Wellsite #3”).

Per 30 TAC §290.41(c)(A)-(E), public groundwater sources shall be located at distances
from potential hazards so that there will be no danger of pollution from flooding or
unsanitary surroundings, such as privies, sewage, sewage treatment plants, livestock,
solid waste disposal sites or underground petroleum and chemical storage tanks and
liquid transmission pipelines or abandoned or improperly sealed wells. Potential sources
of contamination were reviewed within setback distances of 50 feet, 150 feet, 300 feet,
500 feet and ¥4 mile of the proposed wellsites to determine appropriate locations for
Proposed Well #7. The findings from this review are summarized in Table 2. Data sources
for potential pollution hazards included the TCEQ Source Water Assessment & Protection
Viewer, the TWDB Data Viewer, the Railroad Commission of Texas (RRC), and the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL)
Viewer. As shown in Figure 2, Figure 3 and Figure 4, no potential sources of contamination
were identified within the well setback distances. A formal pollution hazard survey and
site visit will be conducted in subsequent tasks to visually confirm the presence or
absence of pollution hazards at the proposed wellsite(s) within the setback distances.

e
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Setback

Table 2. Potential Sources of Contamination at Proposed Well Location (PW) 1, 2 and 3

Potential Source of Contamination Description

Distance

50 feet

Tile or concrete sanitary sewer, sewerage
appurtenance, septic tank, storm sewer,
cemetery, livestock in pastures, sanitary or storm
sewers constructed of ductile iron or PVC and
having a minimum of 150 psi or greater and
equipped with pressure type joints (no less than
10 feet)

None

None

None

150 feet

Septic tank, perforated drainfield, areas irrigated
by low dosage, low angle spray on-site sewage
facilities, absorption bed, evapotranspiration bed,
improperly constructed water well, or underground
petroleum and chemical storage tank or liquid
transmission pipeline

None

None

None

300 feet

Sewage wet well, sewage pumping station, or a
drainage ditch which contains industrial waste
discharges or wastes from a sewage treatment
system

None

None

None

500 feet

Sewage treatment plants, animal feed lots, solid
waste disposal sites, lands on which sewage plant
or septic tank sludge is applied, or lands irrigated
by sewage plant effluent.

None

None

None

Y4 Mile

All known abandoned or inoperative wells (unused
wells that have not been plugged), existing or
potential pollution hazards (such as landfills,
dump sites, animal feedlots, military facilities,
industrial facilities, wood-treatment facilities, liquid
petroleum production, storage and transmission
facilities, Class 1-5 injection wells, and pesticide
storage and mixing facilities.

None

Natural Gas
Pipeline

None

|REO wATER
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LRE reviewed the NFHL Viewer to assess proposed well locations on the potential
wellsites in relation to regulatory flood hazard areas. Special Flood Hazard Areas
(SFHASs) are defined as the area that will be inundated by the flood event having a 1-
percent chance (“100-year floodplain™) of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.
Currently, SFHAs in Falls County are unmapped, as shown in the “Unmapped FIRM
(Flood Rate Insurance Map) Panel 480805” in Figure 2, Figure 3, and Figure 4. Therefore,
Base Level Engineering (BLE) data from the Estimated Base Flood Elevation Viewer
(estBFE Viewer) were used to assess flood risk for this area.

Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) for 0.2 percent annual chance floods (“500-year
floodplain”) were mapped using the BLE data to determine the extent of low to moderate
risk (0.2-percent Annual Chance Flood Zone) and high-risk (1-percent Annual Chance
Food Zone) flood zones from Hoolia Creek (Figure 2, Figure 3, and Figure 4). It is
important to note that BLE data does not replace the current FIRM until proper due
process and adoption (by FEMA) has been completed, yet the data may still be used to
assess the potential flood hazards at the proposed wellsites. Elevation contours are
displayed to show the topographic gradient across the proposed wellsites and to identify
lower topographic areas that may be prone to flooding. Based on information presented
in the estBFE Viewer (and presented in Figure 2, Figure 3, and Figure 4), portions of
Wellsites #1 and #2 may be prone to flooding from Hoolia Creek and/or tributaries of
Hoolia Creek. Using this information, LRE located proposed well locations on each
potential wellsite to comply with the required setback distances set forth by the TCEQ
and avoid low-lying areas prone to flooding.

Proposed Well Location #1 (“PW #17) is located in the northwest corner of Wellsite #1 off
County Road 437 where there is less potential for flooding from a tributary of Hoolia Creek
(Figure 2). Although Wellsite #1 exhibits no moderate to high-risk flood extents mapped
in Figure 2, a more detailed study may indicate SFHAs in lower topographic areas. No
potential sources of contamination were identified within the setback distances for PW
#1. Proposed Well Location #2 (“PW #2”) is located on the north side of State Highway 7
on Wellsite #2 to avoid areas that may be impacted by potential flooding from Hoolia
Creek (Figure 3). A natural gas pipeline was identified within a quarter mile of the PW #2
(Table 2). LRE does not anticipate that the well’s proximity to the natural gas pipeline will
be an issue with TCEQ granting approval for the use the Proposed Well #7 as a PWS
source. However, an exception to the setback distance requirements may be requested
prior to TCEQ approval of the final plans. Proposed Well Location #3 (“PW #3”) is located
in the southern portion of Wellsite #3 off State Hwy 7 (Figure 4). No potential sources of
contamination were identified within the required setback distances for PW #3 (Table 2).
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Figure 2. Pollution Hazards Map for PW #1 at Wellsite #1
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Geologic Setting

The geologic units beneath the City of Bruceville-Eddy CCN consist of a southeast-
dipping sequence of Cretaceous-age sandstone and limestone aquifers and confining
shale layers. Beneath the proposed wellsites, the Austin Chalk of the Austin Group is
present at land surface (Figure 5) and is underlain by the Eagle Ford Group and shale
facies of the Woodbine Group (commonly referred to as the “Pepper Shale”). The
Woodbine Group overlies the Washita Group, which is divided into the Buda Limestone,
Del Rio Clay, and Georgetown Limestone. Below the Washita Group is the
Fredericksburg Group, which is divided into the Kiamichi Clay, Edwards Limestone,
Comanche Peak Formation, and the Walnut Formation. Underlying the Fredericksburg
Group is the Trinity Group, which is divided into an upper section (Glen Rose Limestone),
a middle sand (Hensell), limestone (Cow Creek), and shale (Hammett) section, and a
lower sand unit (Hosston Formation). Table 3 summarizes the stratigraphic units beneath
the proposed wellsites.

Table 3. Summary of Generalized Stratigraphic Units Beneath the Proposed Wellsites

Stratigraphic Units

Austin Group Austin Chalk
Upper South Bosque Limestone
Cretaceous Eagle Ford Group Lake Flow Formation
Woodbine Group Pepper Shale
Washita Group Buda Limestone, _DeI Rio Clay
Georgetown Limestone
Kiamichi Clay
Fredericksburg Edwards Limestone
Lower Group Comanche Peak Formation
Cretaceous Walnut Formation
Upper Trinity Glen Rose Formation
. . . Hensell Sand Member
Trinity Group Middle Trinity Cow Creek/ Hammett Shale
Lower Trinity Hosston Formation
Pre-Cretaceous Rocks, undifferentiated Paleozoics

Earlier literature commonly refers to the Trinity Group stratigraphic units underlying the
Glen Rose Formation as the “Travis Peak Formation” (Klemt and others, 1975). However,
this naming convention is not currently used. The stratigraphic units of the Trinity Group
are more commonly referred to as the “Upper, Middle, and Lower Trinity” in this area.

T3
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The proposed wellsites lie within the northern extent of the Balcones Fault Zone, which
is an area characterized by a series of northeast-southwest trending normal faults.
Locally, this includes a semi-parallel fault system as mapped in the 1:250,000 Geologic
Atlas of Texas (GAT) Sheet and shown in Figure 5. The mapped normal fault located to
the east of the wellsites correlates with a distinct contact between the surface outcrop of
the Austin Group (west of the fault line) and the Taylor Group (east of the fault line), where
formations east of the fault line are on the “downthrown” block and formations west of the
fault are the “upthrown” block (Figure 5). Therefore, the formations east of the fault on the
downthrown block will be present at greater depths than the formations west of the fault.

Due to the scale of the 1:250,000 GAT sheet, it is possible that the eastern-most fault
near the proposed wellsites may not actually be located at the mapped fault location
(Figure 5). To assess the accuracy of the fault location, LRE surveyed land surface
topographic data to identify changes in topography, which may suggest the presence of
a fault. Specifically, LRE obtained LIDAR imaging from digital elevation models (DEMSs)
and topographic contours from the TxGIO to confirm the location of the mapped fault,
based on changes in topography and offset of surface features (Figure 6). Based on this
information, identifiable surface lineaments, changes in topography, and the offset of
Hoolia Creek, LRE concludes that a fault is correctly located at the mapped location, as
presented in Figure 5 and Figure 6.

Faults generally affect the movement of groundwater flow. Specifically, faults and
associated joints may form local and regional groundwater conduits, resulting in
increased permeability, and thus productivity. Conversely, if the fault’'s offset is great
enough to displace geologic units, such as, for example, if a sandstone aquifer is
disconnected by an impermeable layer (such as shale or clay), then the fault may
completely restrict the movement of groundwater flow. In instances where a fault acts as
a barrier to groundwater flow, drawdown in a nearby well will be greater, resulting in lower
productivity/yield. Predicting how a fault may impact a nearby well is challenging, as it is
only through aquifer testing that these local impacts are better understood.

When assessing wellsites and proximity to a potential fault zone, it's also important to
acknowledge the increased likelihood of encountering issues while drilling. Common
issues include drill stem deviations, loss of drilling fluid circulation, and potential borehole
failures. These factors should not necessarily deter drilling near a fault but should be
considered during development of the drilling and construction program to successfully
navigate any of these issues that may arise.
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Target Aquifers

The “Edwards and associated limestones” is a term commonly used for the Georgetown
and Edwards Formations of the Washita and Fredericksburg Groups beneath the
proposed wellsites. Klemt and others (1975) state that the Edwards and associated
limestones of the Washita and Fredericksburg Groups may yield small to large amounts
of water in the outcrop area. Surrounding wells completed in these formations are located
updip of the proposed wellsites in the outcrop area, approximately 11 miles to the west-
northwest. Therefore, the Edwards and associated limestones are not considered to be
a significant source of water beneath the proposed wellsites.

The Trinity Group Aquifer is a major aquifer in Falls County and consists of alternating
layers of sandstone, limestone, clays, and shales. Beneath the proposed wellsites, the
Glen Rose Formation (commonly referred to as the "Upper Trinity”) is primarily composed
of limestone with some shale, sandy shale, clay, sandstone, and anhydrite. The Glen
Rose Formation produces smaller quantities of water on or adjacent to its outcrop (Klemt
and others, 1975). The Hensell Sand Member, Cow Creek Limestone, and Hammett
Shale comprise the “Middle Trinity,” which consist of sandstone, siltstone, sandy shales,
limestone, clays, and shales. Limestone layers within the Cow Creek Member may yield
small amounts of water in areas near or adjacent to the outcrop (Klemt and others, 1975).
In this area, the Cow Creek and Hammett Shale are composed primarily of limestone,
clays and shales which act as a confining layer between the Hensell Sand Member and
Hosston Formation (Klemt and others, 1975). The Hensell Sand Member consists of
conglomerates, fine-to coarse grained sand, sandstone, siltstone, clay, limestone, and
sandy shales, and is commonly referred to as the “1st Trinity Sand.” The Hosston
Formation comprises the “Lower Trinity” and is commonly referred to as the “2" Trinity
Sand” or “Lower Trinity Sand.” The Hosston Formation consists of poorly sorted pebbly
and sandy conglomerate, sandy and silty clay, interbedded clay and multicolored shales,
and is considered the most important aquifer in parts of Central Texas (Klemt and others,
1975).

Aquifer Properties

The TWDB Groundwater Availability Models (GAMSs) are regional-scale numerical models
developed to simulate the impacts of groundwater pumping on the aquifer and to provide
estimates of groundwater availability for groundwater resource management and water
planning purposes. GAMs are not intended to be used for obtaining site-specific aquifer
parameters but can be used to provide general estimates of aquifer depths and aquifer
productivity where surrounding well data is limited. The City of Bruceville-Eddy CCN lies
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within the boundaries of the Northern Trinity Woodbine GAM (“NTWGAM?” as described
in TWDB, 2014). For modeling purposes, the NTWGAM subdivides the hydrologic units
of the Woodbine, Washita/Fredericksburg, and Trinity Groups into eight layers based on
significant differences in geologic properties. These include the younger Cretaceous units
(Layer 1), Woodbine Group (Layer 2), Washita/Fredericksburg Groups (Layer 3), and the
Trinity Group, which is sub-divided into the Paluxy (Layer 4), Glen Rose Limestone (Layer
5), Hensell Sand Member (Layer 6), Pearsall/Cow Creek/Hammett Member (Layer 7),
and the Hosston Formation (Layer 8). Hydraulic properties from the NTWGAM were
extracted from the water-bearing units/layers from the cells beneath the proposed well
locations and are summarized in Table 4.

The Paluxy Formation of the Trinity Group (Layer 4 in the NTWGAM) pinches out in
McLennan County and is therefore not present beneath the proposed well locations.
Similarly, the Pearsall Member is does not occur in the Trinity Group in this area and is
therefore not present beneath the proposed well locations.

Hydraulic conductivity, measured in gallons per day per square foot (gpd/ft?), and specific
storage, expressed in per foot (ft*) were derived from the NTWGAM for cells beneath the
proposed well locations (Table 4). Storativity values for each aquifer were computed by
multiplying the aquifer thickness (in feet) by the specific storage coefficient (ft') from the
NTWGAM. This storage coefficient was approximately 0.0001 for the
Washita/Fredericksburg Groups and the Hosston Formation, and approximately 0.00001
to 0.00002 for the Glen Rose Formation and Hensell Sand Member (Table 4).
Transmissivity values were determined by multiplying the hydraulic conductivity values
(in gpd/ft?) from the NTWGAM by the aquifer thickness (in feet), providing an estimate of
transmissivity in gallons per day per foot (gpd/ft). As shown in Table 4, the
Washita/Fredericksburg Group exhibits the highest transmissivity, ranging from 1,870
gpd/ft to 1,955 gpd/ft, and the Hensell Sand Member exhibits the lowest transmissivity,
ranging from 128 to 225 gpd/ft. However, these values are largely attributed to the aquifer
thickness, which range from 490 to 500 feet for the Glen Rose Formation and 30 to 40
feet for the Hensell Sand Member (Table 4). The Hosston Formation exhibits the highest
hydraulic conductivity, ranging from 10.92 to 11.15 gpd/ft?, which results in transmissivity
values of 1,750 to 2,285 gpd/ft (Table 4).
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Table 4. Estimated Hydraulic Properties of the Water-Bearing Units from the NTWGAM Beneath
the Proposed Well Locations

Hydraulic Property from the

NTWGAM PW #1 PW #2
Washita/Fredericksburg Groups (Layer 3)
Depth to Base (ft bgl) 1,010 980 1,080
Aquifer Thickness (ft) 495 490 500
Hydraulic Conductivity (gpd/ft?) 3.95 3.95 3.74
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 1,955 1,935 1,870
Specific Storage (ft?) 2.29 x 10”7 2.22 x 10”7 1.96 x 10”7
Storativity (dimensionless 0.0001 0.0001 0.0001
n Rose Formation (Layer 5)
Depth to Base (ft bgl) 1,735 1,710 1,800
Aquifer Thickness (ft) 700 700 685
Hydraulic Conductivity (gpd/ft?) 2.62 2.62 2.47
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 1,900 1,912 1,778
Specific Storage (ft?) 3.39 x 108 3.41 x 108 3.18 x 108
Storativity (dimensionless 0.00002 0.00002 0.00002
Hensell Sand Member (Layer 6)
Depth to Base (ft bgl) 1,775 1,745 1,830
Aquifer Thickness (ft) 40 35 30
Hydraulic Conductivity (gpd/ft?) 5.61 5.46 4.26
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 225 190 128
Specific Storage (ft?) 4.14 x 10”7 4.09 x 107 3.75 x 10”7
Storativity (dimensionless 0.00002 0.00001 0.00001
Hosston Formation (Layer 8)
Depth to Base (ft bgl) 2,090 2,065 2,210
Aquifer Thickness (ft) 160 160 205
Hydraulic Conductivity (gpd/ft?) 10.92 11.07 11.15
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 1,750 1,770 2,285
Specific Storage (ft?) 3.95 x 10~ 3.91 x 10~ 3.72 x 10”7
Storativity (dimensionless) 0.0001 0.0001 0.0001

‘NTWGAM” indicates the Northern Trinity and Woodbine Aquifers Groundwater Availability Model, “ft bgl” indicates feet
below ground level, where ground level is assumed to be the top of Layer 1 from the NTWGAM, “ft” indicates feet,
p%ﬁ:%ff)zt indicates gallons per day per foot squared, “gpd/ft” indicates gallons per day per foot, “ft'” indicates gallons
To supplement the hydraulic properties obtained from the NTWGAM, LRE compiled
hydraulic properties of the target aquifers from surrounding wells within a 10-mile radius
of the proposed wellsites. Several wells were completed in shallower Upper Cretaceous
formations, but these wells are smaller yield domestic or non-potable supply wells with
no available aquifer test data. No aquifer test data were available from wells completed
in the Washita/Fredericksburg Groups or Glen Rose Formation within 10 miles of the
proposed wellsites.
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Hydraulic properties for the surrounding wells were based on available aquifer test data
and well reports from the TWDB Database, the SDR Database, TWDB R-195 (Klemt and
others, 1975), and the TCEQ dataset for PWS Wells in GMA-8 (Young and others, 2012).
The hydraulic properties beneath the proposed wellsites were interpreted from nearby
wells and are presented in Table 5.

Table 5. Estimated Hydraulic Properties Beneath the Proposed Wellsites from Surrounding
Aquifer Test Data

Hydraulic Property from

Surrounding Wells R
Hensell Sand Member
Depth to Top of Aquifer (ft bgl) 1,735 1,710 1,800
Depth to Base of Aquifer (ft bgl) 1,775 1,745 1,830
Net Sand Thickness (ft) 40 35 30
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 2,480
Storativity (dimensionless) NA
Static Water Level (ft bgl) 600
Hosston Formation
Depth to Top of Aquifer (ft bgl) 1,840 1,830 1,950
Depth to Base of Aquifer (ft bgl) 1,990 1,980 2,100
Net Sand Thickness (ft) 110 110 100
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 3,200
Storativity (dimensionless) 0.000028
Static Water Level (ft bgl) 550

“ft bgl” indicates feet below ground level, “ft” indicates feet, “gpd/ft” indicates gallons per day per foot, “NA” indicates
value not available from surrounding wells.

Generally, surrounding wells that are located along the same strike as the proposed wells
will have similar hydraulic properties and formation depths. The strike of the Hensell Sand
Member and Hosston Formation generally parallel the sequence of normal faults of the
Balcones Fault Zone, which trend northeast-southwest.

The City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #4 (State Well Number 4047103) is reported to be
completed in the Hensell Sand Member in the TWDB Database, with screen intervals
from 1,610-1,800 feet bgl. Based on a geophysical log for the City of Bruceville-Eddy Well
#4, the Hensell Sand Member is likely present from approximately 1,466 to 1,530 feet (48
feet net sands), and the Hosston Formation from approximately 1,610 to 1,840 feet (190
feet of net sands) beneath the City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #4. Therefore, the City of
Bruceville-Eddy Well #4 is likely completed in the Hosston Formation. The geophysical
log for the City of Bruceville Eddy Well #4 is provided in Appendix A.

The closest surrounding well completed in the Hosston Formation is the Durango WSC
Well #2 (State Well Report 4047703), which is located approximately 1-mile to the south-
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southwest and along the same strike as PW#3. This well was screened from 1,970-2,010
and 2,020-2,080 feet, with a net sand thickness of 100 feet. Based on the local dip of the
formations and information from nearby well data and driller’s reports, it is estimated that
beneath the proposed wellsites, the Hensell Sand Member occurs from approximately
1,710-1,830 feet (net sand thicknesses of 30-40 feet), and the Hosston Formation occurs
from approximately 1,840-2,100 feet (net sand thickness of 100-110 feet), as presented
in Table 5. These depth values and thicknesses are consistent with the formation depths
from the NTWGAM (Table 4).

The City of Moody Well #2 (State Well Number 4046403) was used as an observation
well during an aquifer test for the former City of Moody Well #1 (State Well Number
4046402). Storativity calculated from the aquifer test was 0.000028, and transmissivity
was calculated to be 8,200 gpd/ft for the Hosston Formation (Klemt and others, 1975).
Therefore, storativity for the Hosston Formation in the area is estimated to be 0.000028
(Table 5).

Where transmissivity cannot be computed from aquifer test data due to improperly or
poorly documented tests, it can be calculated using the estimation method developed by
Driscoll (1986) for confined aquifers. Using this method, transmissivity is calculated by
multiplying the well’s specific capacity, expressed in gallons per minute per foot (gpm/ft),
by 2,000. It is important to note that specific capacity does not account for well efficiency,
well size, or partial well penetration, and therefore should only be used as a general
indicator of aquifer productivity. Values of specific capacity were compiled from
surrounding wells in the TWDB Database, SDR Database, and the TCEQ dataset for
PWS wells (Young and others, 2012) to estimate transmissivity of the Hensell Sand
Member and Hosston Formation beneath the proposed wellsites (Table 5).

Within a 10-mile radius of the proposed wellsites, estimates of transmissivity were
computed from one (1) well completed in the Hensell Sand Member (Figure 7), one (1)
well “dual completed” in the Hensell Sand Member and Hosston Formation, (Figure 7 and
Figure 8) and 17 wells completed in the Hosston Formation (Figure 8). The closest well
completed in the Hensell Sand Member with reported aquifer test data is the Moses Hill
Estates Well (State Well Number 4038601), which was screened from 1,408-1,428 feet
and 1,456-1,484 feet (48 feet net sand thickness). After 6 hours of pumping the Moses
Hill Estates Well at 68 gpm, 55 feet of drawdown was observed, resulting in a specific
capacity of 1.24 gpm/ft. Transmissivity calculated from specific capacity using the Driscoll
(1986) estimation method is 2,480 gpd/ft for the Hensell Sand Member (Table 5).

B o




Groundwater Availability Study
City of Bruceville-Eddy
December 1, 2023

Page 19 of 33

2480 gpalt

BIFO RENA

)
O

WELL #3-7¢
FRIENDLY/ "

y
&5

“BRUCEVILLE .
WELLS' A €

XY L &
WELLY#5-SREBRUGE VI INEAED DY
TOUBERT, \ WELL#2_J =
- EDDY;

. o
2,900 gpd/ft b
(Hensell @IG] -

/"""&V C/
L A

./

Fropased Vel Locatlons Surrounding Wells Completed in the Hensell with

City of Bruceville Eddy PWS Wells (Hensell) Estimated Transmissivity from Reported Specific
: ) Capacity (gpd/ft)

Plugged City of Bruceville Eddy PWS Wells

(Hensell) @  Wells in SDR Database

Potential Wellsites for Proposed Well #7 @® Wells in TWDB Database

City of Bruceville Eddy CCN (No. 11285) (&)  PWS Well in GMA-8 (Young and others, 2012)
~ County Boundary

TxDOT Roadways 0 1 2 4

Normal Faults (Source: USGS) ey — il &S

Figure 7. Transmissivity Estimates from Surrounding Wells Completed in the Hensell Member

|REO wATER




Groundwater Availability Study
City of Bruceville-Eddy
December 1, 2023

Page 20 of 33

Y oomgm T e IR R

-\ 9,100 gpd/ft

% LORENA

FRIENDL :

 WELL#1-
ﬂm@m

2,810 gpd/ft ] ¢
DGR o ooy (S BRUCE
) 8,200 gpd/ft TOLBER

*‘*x

IREONES

[
'R %

. °'
8,500 gpd/ft
-~ !
o

Proposed Well Locations Surrounding Wells Completed in the Hosston
. . Formation with Estimated Transmissivity from
City of Bruceville Eddy PWS Wells = :
(Hosston) Reported Specific Capacity (gpd/ft)
. i {) Wells in the SDR Database
Potential Wellsites for Proposed Well #7
. . @® Wells in the TWDB Database
Gity ot Biugeyile Edgy GON(NG, 11289) @ PWS Well in GMA-8 (Young and others, 2012)
 County Boundary o Transmissivity (gpd/ft) Calculated from Aquifer
TxDOT Roadways Test (R-195)
0 1 2 4
Normal Faults (Source: USGS) e — |

Figure 8. Transmissivity Estimates from Surrounding Wells Completed in the Hosston Formation

|REO wATER




Groundwater Availability Study
City of Bruceville-Eddy
December 1, 2023

Page 21 of 33

The City of Bruceville Well #5 (Well Report Tracking Number 355761) is screened from
1,355-1,361 feet and 1,505-1,831 feet. Based on the lithologic log in the Submitted
Driller's Report, the screen interval from 1,355-1,361 feet is in limestone, which likely
corresponds to the Glen Rose Formation, and the screen interval from 1,505-1,831 feet
is completed in sands and shales that likely correspond to the Hensell Sand Member and
the Hosston Formation. The City of Bruceville Eddy Well #4 was reported to have 310
feet of drawdown after pumping at 450 gpm for 8 hours, which results in a specific
capacity of 1.45 gpml/ft. Transmissivity calculated from specific capacity using the Driscoll
(1986) estimation method is 2,900 gpd/ft. Although “dual completed” wells may have
higher estimates of transmissivity, screening the shallower portions of an aquifer can limit
the amount of available drawdown (i.e., from static water level to the top of the aquifer),
which can result in lower well yields. Additionally, wells that are screened in both aquifers
may be impacted by well-to-well interference from wells producing from the Hensell Sand
Member and the Hosston Formation.

A 24-hour aquifer test was conducted at the Durango WSC Well #2 (State Well Report
4047703), which resulted in 156 feet of drawdown after pumping at a rate of 250 gpm,
yielding a specific capacity of 1.6 gpm/ft. Transmissivity for the Hosston Formation at the
Durango WSC Well #2 is 3,200 gpd/ft using the Driscoll (1986) estimation method. The
Durango WSC Well #2 is positioned on the “upthrown” block (west of the fault) and along
the same strike as PW#3 (Figure 8), which suggests that the Hosston Formation beneath
PW#3 may exhibit similar aquifer conditions and hydraulic properties. However, due to
the proximity of the well to the fault, longer durations of pumping may indicate a boundary
condition (either positive or negative), which may influence the transmissivity value.

Transmissivity estimates for surrounding wells completed in the Hosston Formation range
from 1,000 gpd/ft to 14,100 gpd/ft (Figure 8). The range in transmissivity values can likely
be attributed to variations in the permeability and thickness of the aquifer, proximity to
aquifer boundary conditions (such as faults), partially penetrating wells (i.e., wells that do
not fully penetrate the entire aquifer thickness), improperly conducted aquifer tests or
measurements during drawdown tests, and variations in estimating transmissivity from
the Driscoll method (1986). As shown in Figure 8, transmissivity values calculated from
aquifer tests (R-195) are generally higher than estimates of transmissivity from reported
specific capacity. Therefore, the estimates of transmissivity from reported specific
capacity for surrounding wells may underestimate the actual transmissivity of the Hensell
Sand Member and Hosston Formation.

Compared to the hydraulic properties derived from the NTWGAM from the cells beneath
the proposed well locations, the transmissivity estimated from surrounding aquifer test

B o




Groundwater Availability Study
City of Bruceville-Eddy
December 1, 2023

Page 22 of 33

and specific capacity data generally exhibit higher values (Table 5). The transmissivity
values from the NTWGAM are derived by multiplying the hydraulic conductivity values by
the aquifer thickness, which is generally small for the Hensell Sand Member (30 to 40
feet), compared to other formations. Additionally, the distribution of control points for
hydraulic conductivity values for the Hensell Sand Member and Hosston Formation are
poor in the vicinity of the proposed wellsites (TWDB, 2014). Consequently, the
transmissivity values of the Hensell Sand and Hosston Formation from the NTWGAM
may not accurately reflect the site-specific transmissivity values of the target aquifers
beneath the proposed wellsites.

Recent water level data for the Hensell Sand Member and Hosston Formation were
obtained from the TWDB Database to estimate static water levels beneath the proposed
wellsites (Table 5). The closest well completed in the Hosston Formation with available
water level data is State Well Tracking Number 636811, which was completed from 1,950-
2,090 and recorded a water level measurement of 551 feet bgl on 4/12/2023. For the
Hensell Sand Member, water levels were estimated from State Well Tracking Number
285362, which reported a water level measurement of 604 feet bgl in 4/23/2012.

It is important to note that the hydraulic properties are based on surrounding data and are
provided as general estimates. Therefore, the site-specific hydraulic properties of the
aquifers beneath the proposed wellsites can only be confirmed after drilling and testing.

Water Quality

The TCEQ regulates the quality of public water supplies using a defined set of primary
and secondary drinking water standards for specific water quality constituents. The TCEQ
has established Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) and Secondary Constituent
Levels (SCLs) for several constituents of concern for organic, inorganic, microbial, and
radionuclide contaminants. Water with constituent concentrations above the MCLs pose
a public health risk and must be treated and/or blended to bring the constituent levels
below the MCL prior to distribution. Constituent concentrations greater than the SCL are
not considered a health risk but can be an aesthetic nuisance (i.e., taste, color, or odor).
Water with constituent concentrations above the SCLs may need written approval from
the TCEQ executive director prior to use for public supply, and/or may need to be treated
and/or blended to lower the concentrations below the SCLs.

LRE obtained water quality data from the TWDB Database for wells within 10 miles of the
proposed wellsites with reported water quality data, which included data from three (3)
wells completed in the Glen Rose Formation, seven (7) wells completed in the Hensell
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Sand Member, and 21 wells completed in the Hosston Formation. Table 6 summarizes
the minimum, maximum, and average concentrations of reported water quality
constituents in surrounding wells, and the number of wells with reported measurements
for each water quality parameter. These results were compared to the TCEQ MCLs and
SCLs for public drinking water supplies. Water quality results for wells completed in
multiple aquifers (“dual completed”) were omitted, and only the most recent reported
water quality data for each well were analyzed.

Total Dissolved Solids (TDS), expressed in milligrams per liter (mg/L), is a measure of all
dissolved constituents in water and is commonly used as an indicator of water quality.
The TWDB classifies groundwater quality into four broad categories; fresh (less than
1,000 mg/L), slightly-saline (1,000-3,000 mg/L), moderately-saline (3,000-10,000 mg/L),
and very-saline (10,000-35,000 mg/L)(LBG-Guyton and Associates, 2003). The term
“brackish” often describes slightly-saline or moderately-saline groundwater with TDS
concentrations between 1,000 mg/L and 10,000 mg/L. The TCEQ SCL for TDS is 1,000
mg/L. Groundwater in surrounding wells completed in the Hosston Formation within 10
miles of the proposed wellsites is generally fresh, with an average TDS concentration of
801 mg/L (Table 6). Groundwater from the Hensell Sand Member is slightly-saline, with
an average TDS concentration of 1,044 mg/L, and groundwater from the Glen Rose
Formation is moderately-saline, with an average TDS concentration of 3,892 mg/L (Table
6). Several wells in all aquifers exceed the TCEQ SCL for TDS (Table 6).

Concentrations of dissolved minerals in groundwater generally increase with depth and
in areas where circulation has been restricted due to faulting or zones of lower
permeability, causing the water to become highly mineralized (Klemt and others, 1975).
Klemt and others (1975) states that the away from the outcrop area, water in the Glen
Rose Formation becomes highly mineralized and constitutes a potential source of
contamination to wells completed in the underlying stratigraphic units. Given the proximity
to a potential fault zone and occurrence of the Glen Rose Formation at depths of
approximately 1,700 to 1,800 feet beneath the proposed wellsites (Table 4), water in the
Glen Rose Formation may be highly mineralized and slightly to moderately-saline
beneath the proposed wellsites.
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Table 6. Reported Water Quality Results from the TWDB Database for the Trinity Group Aquifers within 10 Miles of the Proposed Wellsites

Glen Rose Formation (3 Wells) Hosston Formation (21 Wells)

Water Quality Parameter

TCEQ
Standard

Min

Max

Avg

Hensell Sand Member (7 Wells) ‘

Min

Max

Avg

Min

Max

Avg

‘ Count

Count ‘

‘ Count

Alkalinity, Total (mg/L as CaCO3) NS 365 433 407 3 355 382 371 7 104 478 383 21
Aluminum, Dissolved (mg/L as Al) 0.05 to 0.20** NA NA NA 0 <0.004 <0.004 <0.004 2 <0.004 0.12 <0.03 6
Antimony, Dissolved (mg/L as Sh) 0.006* NA NA NA 0 <0.001 <0.001 <0.001 1 <0.001 <0.002 <0.001 6
Arsenic, Dissolved (mg/L as As) 0.010* NA NA NA 0 <0.002 <0.002 <0.002 2 <0.001 <0.010 <0.003 9
Barium, Dissolved (mg/L as Ba) 2.00* NA NA NA 0 0.03 0.07 0.05 2 0.03 <0.50 <0.13 11
Beryllium, Dissolved (mg/L as Be) 0.004* NA NA NA 0 <0.001 <0.001 <0.001 2 <0.001 <0.002 <0.001 6
Bicarbonate, Calculated (mg/L as HCO3) NS 445 528 497 3 417 465 445 7 127 569 450 21
Cadmium, Dissolved (mg/L as Cd) 0.005* NA NA NA 0 <0.001 <0.001 <0.001 2 <0.001 <0.010 <0.004 9
Calcium (mg/L) NS 16.0 68.0 49.7 3 2.6 16.6 9.2 7 2.6 39.0 6.7 19
Chloride, Total (mg/L as CI) 300** 142 1,177 769 3 67 251 125 7 32 200 109 20
Chromium, Dissolved (mg/L as Cr) 0.100* NA NA NA 0 0.001 0.003 0.002 2 <0.001 <0.020 <0.008 9
Copper, Dissolved (mg/L as Cu) 1.000** NA NA NA 0 <0.001 0.002 <0.002 2 <0.001 <0.020 <0.006 9
Fluoride, Dissolved (mg/L as F) 2.0** or 4.0* 1.6 1.6 1.6 1 1.6 2.5 2.0 7 0.3 4.2 1.9 20
Hardness, Total Calculated (mg/L as CaCQO3) NS 68 3,815 1,354 3 15 72 42 7 11 113 22 20
Iron, Total (mg/L as Fe) 0.30** 0.08 0.08 0.08 1 <0.05 0.09 <0.07 2 0.02 0.33 0.10 19
Lead, Dissolved (mg/L as Pb) NS NA NA NA 0 <0.001 <0.001 <0.001 2 <0.001 <0.050 <0.018 9
Magnesium (mg/L) NS 7 733 299 3 1 8 4 7 <1 4 <2 19
Manganese, Total (mg/L as Mn) NS <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 1 0 <0.05 <0.02 6 <0.02 <0.05 <0.03 16
Mercury, Dissolved (mg/L as Hg) 0.002* NA NA NA 0 <0.0002 | <0.0002 | <0.0002 2 <0.0001 | <0.0002 | <0.0002 9
Nitrate Nitrogen, Dissolved Calculated (mg/L as N) 10.00* <0.4 <0.4 <0.4 1 <0.04 0.50 <0.23 7 0 1.50 <0.23 19
Nitrite Nitrogen, Dissolved (mg/L as N) 1.00* NA NA NA 0 0.01 0.01 0.01 2 <0.01 0.02 <0.01 4
pH (std units), Field >7.0* 8.3 8.3 8.3 1 7.6 8.3 8.1 7 7.4 8.8 8.2 20
Potassium, Total (mg/L as K) NS 3.8 3.8 3.8 1 3.8 4.2 4.0 2 2.0 11.0 3.8 9
Selenium, Dissolved (mg/L as Se) 0.050* NA NA NA 0 <0.004 <0.004 <0.004 2 <0.002 <0.005 <0.004 9
Silica, Dissolved (mg/L as SiO2) NS 14 14 14 1 6.5 26.0 14.7 7 3.0 24.0 17.1 15
Silver, Dissolved (mg/L as Ag) 0.100** NA NA NA 0 <0.001 <0.010 <0.006 2 <0.001 <0.010 <0.007 9
Sodium, Total (mg/L as Na) NS 361 1,600 862 3 312 522 377 7 30 391 300 20
Specific Conductance, Field (umhos/cm at 25°C) NS NA NA NA 0 1,200 2,772 1,811 7 395 1,836 1,397 20
Sulfate, Total (mg/L as SO4) 300** 277 2,367 1,667 3 218 469 304 7 29 232 134 20
Temperature Water (Celsius) NS 32.0 32.0 32.0 1 37 39 38 2 25.0 50.0 38.8 13
Thallium, Dissolved (mg/L as TI) 0.002* NA NA NA 0 <0.001 <0.001 <0.001 2 <0.001 <0.002 <0.001 6
TDS, Sum of Constituents (mg/L) 1,000** 1,038 5,431 3,892 3 805 1,496 1,044 7 209 1,009 801 20
Zinc, Dissolved (mg/L as Zn) 5.000** NA NA NA 0 <0.004 0.023 <0.013 2 <0.004 <0.020 <0.011 9

*TCEQ MCL for Primary Drinking Water Standards, *TCEQ Secondary Constituent Level for Secondary Drinking Water Standards, cells highlighted in Red indicate TCEQ MCL exceedance, cells highlighted in Yellow indicate TCEQ Secondary Standard
exceedance, cells highlighted in Orange indicate laboratory detection limit below the TCEQ Standard, “NA” indicates constituent not analyzed, “NS” indicates no TCEQ Standard, “<” flag where laboratory detection limit or conversion error in TWDB
Database, “mg/L” indicates milligram per liter, “’C” indicates degrees Celsius, “umhos/cm” indicates micromhos per centimeter.
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The TCEQ MCL for fluoride (4.0 mg/L) was exceeded in the City of Bruceville-Eddy
“Westridge” Well #1 (State Well Number 4046501) at a concentration of 4.2 mg/L (Table
6). Therefore, fluoride may be present in the Hosston Formation beneath the proposed
wellsites at concentrations exceeding the TCEQ MCL (4.0 mg/L) and SCL (2.0 mg/L) for
drinking water. Reported concentrations of arsenic (0.01 mg/L), cadmium (0.005 mg/L),
and thallium (0.002 mg/L) exceed the TCEQ MCLs, yet these data were flagged in the
TWDB Database as being potentially inaccurate. Several wells reported exceedances of
the TCEQ SCL for aluminum (0.05 mg/L) and iron (0.30 mg/L) in the Hosston Formation,
fluoride (2.0 mg/L) and sulfate (300 mg/L) in the Hensell Sand Member, and chloride and
sulfate for wells completed in the Glen Rose Formation (Table 6).

Estimated Well Yields

LRE developed an analytical groundwater model using the Cooper-Jacob (1946) equation
to estimate average well yields for the Proposed Well #7. When estimating well yields,
LRE typically limits pumping water levels in the wellbore to approximately 50% of the
initial total available drawdown (i.e., level of water in feet from static water level to the top
of the aquifer/screen). This limitation provides a “safety factor” with respect to unforeseen
interference effects from future groundwater users and unknown aquifer or operational
conditions, such as areas of low transmissivity or lower well efficiency. Several factors
can influence well yield, including aquifer hydraulic properties, aquifer boundary
conditions, well construction and completion, well spacing (with respect to nearby
pumping wells screened in the same aquifer), and pump characteristics. LRE typically
provides estimates of well yields to simulate the continuous rates that can be sustained
from the target aquifer for providing a long-term water supply over 30 years.

Based on surrounding aquifer tests and water quality data, the target aquifers for
Proposed Well #7 are the Hensell Sand Member and Hosston Formation. The model input
parameters used for estimating well yields from the target aquifers are provided in Table
7 for the Hensell Sand Member and Table Table 8 for the Hosston Formation. Input
parameters for the existing City of Bruceville-Eddy system wells were included to model
well-to-well interference between the proposed wells and the existing system wells
completed in the same aquifer. Model input parameters for the existing City of Bruceville-
Eddy wells were assumed where well construction or aquifer test data were not available.
The well depths listed in Table 7 and Table 8 for the proposed wellsites are based on the
anticipated depth to the base of the target aquifer, which would ensure that the entire
aquifer has been fully penetrated during drilling. The screen thicknesses are equal to the
anticipated net sand thicknesses at the proposed well locations, which are based on data
from surrounding wells completed in the target aquifers. The pump setting depth for the
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proposed wells and system wells assume that pumping water levels will be at least 50

feet above the pump setting (Table 7).

Table 7. Model Input Parameters for the Proposed Well Locations and City of Bruceville-Eddy
System Wells Completed in the Hensell Sand Member

Model Input Parameters PW #1 PW #2 PW #3 Well #3 ‘ Well #5
Top of Aquifer (ft) 1,510 1,500 1,600 1,470 1,355
Well Depth (ft) 1,560 1,550 1,640 1,550 1,839
Screen Thickness (ft) 40 40 30 50 332
Pump Setting Depth (ft) 1,100 1,100 1,150 1,000 1,200
Well Size, Diameter (in) 10 7
Static Water Level (ft) 600
Storativity (dimensionless) 0.00002*
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 2,480 2,900

“ft” indicates feet, “gpm” indicates gallons per minute, “gpd/ft” indicates gallons per day per foot, “*” indicates value

obtained from the NTWGAM.

Table 8. Model Input Parameters for the Proposed Well Locations and City of Bruceville-Eddy
System Wells Completed in the Hosston Formation

Model Input Parameters PW #1 PW #2 PW#3  Well#1 Well#4  Well #5
Top of Aquifer (ft) 1,840 1,830 1,950 1,608 1,610 1,355
Well Depth (ft) 2,010 2,000 2,120 1,720 1,810 1,839
Screen Thickness (ft) 110 110 100 107 190 332
Pump Setting Depth (ft) 1,250 1,250 1,300 1,200 1,200 1,200
Well Size, Diameter (in) 10 7
Static Water Level (ft) 550
Storativity (dimensionless) 0.000028
Transmissivity (gpd/ft) 3,200 | 1,200 | 3,960 | 2,900

“ft” indicates feet, “gpm” indicates gallons per minute, “gpd/ft” indicates gallons per day per foot.

Based on the modeling results, well yields for the Proposed Well #7 range from
approximately 225-250 gpm for the Hensell Sand Member and approximately 425-450
gpm for the Hosston Formation (Table 9). These yields assume that only the proposed
well is pumping, and the pump is running continuously for 30 years.

In addition, LRE modeled well yields for the proposed well locations, assuming that the
existing City of Bruceville-Eddy System wells completed in the target aquifers were
running continuously at the rated flow rates (provided in Table 1) for 30 years. These well
yields for the Proposed Well #7 range from 175-200 gpm for the Hensell Sand Member,
and 300-325 gpm for the Hosston Formation (Table 9). The well location PW#3 has
slightly higher yields than PW#1 and PW#2, primarily because the target aquifers are
deeper at PW#3, which results in additional available drawdown.
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Table 9. Estimated Well Yields for the Proposed Well #7

Estimated Well Yields (gpm)

Target Aquifer

PW #1 PW #2 PW #3
Proposed Well Only
Hensell Sand Member 225 225 250
Hosston Formation 425 425 450
Proposed Well and System Wells
Hensell Sand Member 175 175 200
Hosston Formation 300 300 325

“gpm” indicates gallons per minute, “gpd/ft” indicates gallons per day per foot.

It is important to note that the provided well yields are based on the assumptions and
hydraulic properties for the target aquifers beneath the proposed wellsites, as detailed in
Table 7 and Table 8. Actual well yields and site-specific hydraulic properties beneath the
proposed wellsites can only be determined after the drilling and testing Proposed Well
#7.

To assess well-to-well interference results between the Proposed Well #7 and existing
City of Bruceville-Eddy Wells completed in the target aquifers, LRE modeled the
drawdown from the proposed production for Proposed Well #7 (Table 9) and the rated
flow rates for the existing City of Bruceville-Eddy PWS wells (Table 1) for 30 years. The
City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #5 is dual completed in the Hensell Sand and Hosston
Formation and was therefore included in both well-interference models. Table 10 presents
the well-to-well interference results between the Proposed Well #7 and the existing City
of Bruceville Eddy wells completed in the Hensell Sand Member (Wells #3 and #5).
Production of 175-200 gpm from the Hensell Sand Member at Proposed Well #7 results
in an additional 51-57 feet of drawdown in the City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #3, and 74-76
feet of drawdown in City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #5 (Table 10).

Table 11 presents the well-to-well interference results between the Proposed Well #7 and
the existing City of Bruceville Eddy wells completed in the Hosston Formation (Wells #1,
#4 and #5). Production of 300-325 gpm from the Hosston Formation at Proposed Well #7
results in an additional 72 feet of additional drawdown in the City of Bruceville-Eddy Well
#1, 65-71 feet of drawdown in the City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #4, and 92-100 feet of
drawdown in the City of Bruceville-Eddy Well #5 (Table 11). As indicated, well-to-well
interference increases with increasing pumping rates and proximity of wells completed in
the same aquifer.

g e



Groundwater Availability Study
City of Bruceville-Eddy
December 1, 2023

Page 28 of 33

Table 10. Well Interference Between Proposed Well Locations and City of Bruceville-Eddy Wells
Completed in the Hensell Sand Member

. Pumping Rate Drawdown in each Well, in feet
Pumping Well
(gpm) Proposed Well Well #3 | Well #5
Proposed Well Location #1
PW #1 175 330 52 75
Well #3 50 15 96 14
Well #5 224 96 63 431
Total 449 441 211 520
Proposed Well Location #2
PW #2 175 330 51 76
Well #3 50 15 96 14
Well #5 224 98 63 431
Total 449 443 210 521
Proposed Well Location #3
PW #3 200 376 57 74
Well #3 50 14 96 14
Well #5 224 83 63 431
Total 474 473 216 519

Cells highlighted yellow indicate drawdown from pumping well

Table 11. Well Interference the Proposed Well Locations and City of Bruceville-Eddy Wells
Completed in the Hosston Formation

: Pumping Rate Drawdown in each Well, in feet
Pumping Well
(gpm) Proposed Well Well #1 Well #4 Well #5
Proposed Well Location #1
PW #1 300 436 72 68 99
Well #1 110 60 422 52 64
Well #4 375 71 67 454 67
Well #5 224 81 62 52 366
Total 1,009 648 623 626 596
Proposed Well Location #2
PW #2 300 435 72 65 100
Well #1 110 60 422 52 64
Well #4 375 69 67 454 67
Well #5 224 82 62 52 366
Total 1,009 646 623 623 597
Proposed Well Location #3
PW #3 325 472 72 71 92
Well #1 110 54 421 52 64
Well #4 375 69 67 454 67
Well #5 224 69 62 52 366
Total 1,034 664 622 629 589

Cells highlighted yellow indicate drawdown from pumping well
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Conclusions and Recommendations

Based on this evaluation, LRE concludes the following:

Three conceptual well locations were identified on the potential wellsites and
evaluated for potential sources of contamination;

o Proposed Well Location #1 (“PW #1”) is located in the northwest corner of
Wellsite #1 where there is less potential for flooding from Hoolia Creek,
although a more detailed study may indicate SFHAs in portions of the property
at lower elevations. No potential sources of contamination were identified within
the TCEQ-required setback distances;

o Proposed Well Location #2 (“PW #2”) is located on the north side of State
Highway 7 on Wellsite #2 to avoid areas that may be impacted by potential
flooding from Hoolia Creek. No potential sources of contamination were
identified within the TCEQ-required setback distances, except for a natural gas
pipeline within %2 mile of PW #2. LRE does not anticipate any issues with TCEQ
granting approval of this well location; however, an exception to the well
setback requirement may be requested prior to submitting the final plans;

o Proposed Well #3 (“PW #3”) is located in the southern portion of Wellsite #3 off
State Hwy 7. No potential sources of contamination were identified within the
TCEQ-required setback distances.

The proposed wellsites lie within the northern extent of the Balcones Fault Zone
area; which may act as a conduit or barrier to groundwater flow;

Due to the proximity of the proposed wellsites to a potential fault zone, issues may
be encountered while drilling, including drill stem deviations, loss of drilling fluid
circulation, and potential borehole failures;

Beneath the proposed wellsites, the Hensell Sand Member occurs from
approximately 1,710-1,830 feet, and the Hosston Formation occurs from
approximately 1,840-2,100 feet;

Net sand thickness for the Hensell Sand Member is approximately 30-40 feet, and
100-110 feet for the Hosston Formation beneath the proposed wellsites;

TR



Groundwater Availability Study
City of Bruceville-Eddy
December 1, 2023

Page 30 of 33

Estimated transmissivity for the Hensell Sand Member beneath the proposed
wellsites is approximately 2,480 gpd/ft, and transmissivity for the Hosston
Formation beneath the proposed wellsites is approximately 3,200 gpd/ft;

Water quality results were obtained from wells in the TWDB Database, which
includes three (3) wells completed in the Glen Rose Formation, seven (7) wells
completed in the Hensell Sand Member, and 21 wells completed in the Hosston
Formation; No wells completed within the Washita/Fredericksburg Groups were
located within 10 miles of the proposed wellsites.

o The Hensell Sand Member and Hosston Formation are generally fresh to
slightly saline, with average TDS concentrations of 1,044 mg/L and 801 mg/L,
respectively.

o The Glen Rose Formation is slightly-to moderately saline, with an average TDS
concentration of 3,892 mg/L, which is likely due to the mineralization of the
limestone.

o The TCEQ MCL for fluoride was exceeded in the City of Bruceville Eddy Well
#1, which is screened within the Hosston Formation. Therefore, fluoride may
be present in the Hosston Formation beneath the proposed wellsites at
concentrations exceeding the TCEQ primary and secondary standard for
drinking water.

o Several wells reported exceedances of the TCEQ SCLs for aluminum (0.05
mg/L) and iron (0.30 mg/L) in the Hosston Formation.

o The TCEQ SCL for fluoride (2.0 mg/L) and sulfate (300 mg/L) were exceeded
in several wells completed in the Hensell Sand Member.

Average well yields for the Proposed Well #7 range from 225-250 gpm for the
Hensell Sand Member and 425-450 gpm for the Hosston Formation;

If all of the City of Bruceville-Eddy wells are running simultaneously, the Proposed
Well #7 could produce 175-200 gpm from the Hensell Sand Member, and 300-325
gpm from the Hosston Formation;

Well-to-well interference between the Proposed Well #7 and the existing City of
Bruceville-Eddy wells completed in the Hensell Sand Member results in an
additional 51-57 feet of drawdown in Well #3, and 74-76 feet of drawdown in Well
#5;
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e Well-to-well interference between the Proposed Well #7 and the existing City of
Bruceville-Eddy wells completed in the Hosston Formation results in an additional
72 feet of drawdown in Well #1, 65-71 feet of drawdown in Well #4, and 92-100
feet of drawdown in Well #5;

e Production from Proposed Well #7 at the PW #2 location resulted in the least
amount of well-to-well interference drawdown in the existing City of Bruceville-
Eddy system wells, except in the City of Bruceville Eddy Well #5, which is located
closest the closest to PW #2.

Although not absolute, the lack of wells completed in the Washita/Fredericksburg Groups
or the Glen Rose Formation surrounding the proposed wellsites may indicate poor water
quality or productivity in those formations. Based on the information provided, the Hosston
Formation contains water that is generally fresh (less than 1,000 mg/L TDS) and can
sustain pumping rates up to 450 gpm. The PW #3 well location has the highest well yields
from the Hosston Formation, with up to 450 gpm from just the Proposed Well #7
production, or up to 325 gpm with all the City of Bruceville-Eddy Hosston wells running
simultaneously. The PW #3 location is the closest in proximity to a mapped fault, which
may act as a boundary condition. It is important to reiterate the uncertainty and inherit risk
associated with locating a well near a potential fault, as the fault could potentially limit well
yields below the recommended flow rates or could increase productivity greater than 450
gpm. The PW #3 location would be the deepest well to drill (2,100 feet), and the proximity
to a fault may require a special drilling plan with more involvement from the drilling
contractor and oversight from the onsite geologist. Therefore, the PW #3 location would
likely be the most expensive location to drill based on the well depth and complexity of
the subsurface geology.

The PW #1 and PW #2 locations have similar well yields of 425 gpm from the Hosston
Formation, or 300 gpm if all the City of Bruceville-Eddy Hosston Formation wells are
running simultaneously. The PW #1 location appears to pose the least amount of risk
concerning proximity to flood zones, faults, and other potential sources of contamination.
LRE recommends completing the Proposed Well #7 at the PW #1 location in the Hosston
Formation.
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LRE appreciates the opportunity to provide you with this Groundwater Availability Study.
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

LRE Water

S B
Theresa Budd, PG The seal appearing on this

; ; document was authorized by
Project Hydrogeologist Theresa Budd, P.G. #15233 on
December 1, 2023. LRE Water,

LLC TBPG Firm No. 50516.

Prepared By:

Theresa Budd, Project Hydrogeologist, PG
Kacey Wade, Staff Engineer, EIT
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Jordan Furnans, Vice President TX Operations, PhD, PE, PG
Vince Clause, Groundwater Lead, PG, GISP
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